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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10 - Q

(Mark One):
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2013

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 113610

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

TEXAS 75-644607¢€
(State or other jurisdiction (I.R.S. Employer
of incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
17950 Preston Road, Suite 600, Dallas, TX 752 (972) 34+-3200
(Address of principal executive offices (Registrant's telephone number’

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant ts@guired to file reports pursuant to Section £3%(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. YES O NO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirdilésuch reports), and (2) has been subjec
to such filing requirements for the past 90 day¥ES NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant basnétted electronically and posted on its corpokéib site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRile 405 of Regulation S-T (Section 232.405 &f thhapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the Regyigtwas required to submit and post such file¥)ES NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantl&s@ge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated file O Accelerated filel
Non-accelerated file [0 (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar [
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantsbell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 2Rb- YES [ NO

As of November 5, 2013, the Registrant had outstantl0,596,220 Common Shares of Beneficial Inteat value $0.01 per share.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

September 3C

December 31

2013 2012
(Unaudited)
ASSETS
Loans receivable, ne
Commercial mortgage loans receiva $ 112,32 $ 125,51!
SBIC commercial mortgage loans receive 53,70: 47,15:
SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject to secured mongs 35,62 38,34¢
SBA 7(a) loans receivab 28,39¢ 27,97«
Loans receivable, ni 230,05: 238,99:
Cash and cash equivalel 12,58¢ 1,23(
Other asset 7,26( 7,48¢
Total assets $ 249,90: $ 247,70
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Debt:
Secured borrowing- government guaranteed log $ 38,03t $ 41,00¢
SBIC debentures payak 27,50( 17,19(
Junior subordinated not 27,07( 27,07(
Revolving credit facility 11,90( 11,90(
Debt 104,50! 97,16¢
Borrower advance 3,27¢ 5,94
Accounts payable and accrued expet 2,97¢ 4,07¢
Dividends payabli 1,34 1,29:
Total liabilities 112,10: 108,48:
Commitments and contingenc
Beneficiaries’ equity:
Common shares of beneficial interest; authorize®ldm®,000 shares of $0.01 par value; 11,132,¢
and 11,125,883 shares issued at September 30aP@1Becember 31, 2012, respectively;
10,596,220 and 10,589,554 shares outstanding & 8bpr 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively 111 111
Additional paic-in capital 153,11: 153,07.
Net unrealized appreciation of retained interastsansferred asse 271 27¢
Cumulative net incom 176,43( 173,91
Cumulative dividend (188,129 (184,15)
Beneficiaries equity before treasury stock 141,80( 143,22
Less: Treasury stock; at cost, 536,329 sharespe®eer 30, 2013 and December 31, 2 (4,90 (4,907)
Total beneficiaries’ equity 136,89¢ 138,32t
Noncontrolling interest- cumulative preferred stock of subsidi: 90C 90C
Total equity 137,79¢ 139,22t
Total liabilities and equity $ 249,90: $ 247,70

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Nine Months Ended Three Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Unaudited)

Revenues:

Interest incom $ 10,49 $ 10,39: $ 3,57C $ 3,561

Premium incomt 1,96( 1,183 417 79¢€

Other income 1,131 1,03¢ 601 507
Total revenue: 13,58 12,61¢ 4,58¢ 4,86¢
Expenses:

Salaries and related bene! 3,172 3,35( 1,05¢ 1,091

Interest 2,511 2,64¢ 80¢ 887

General and administrati 1,94t 1,49: 60¢€ 49t

Transaction cost 1,61t — 1,22 —

Provision for loan losses, n 562 64¢€ 14¢ 53

Strategic alternative — 3,62: — 1,421
Total expense 9,80¢ 11,75¢ 3,83¢ 3,941
Income before income tax provision and discontinuedperations, net of tax 3,782 857 754 917
Income tax provisiol (94€) (317) (35€6) (272)
Income from continuing operations 2,83¢ 54¢€ 39¢ 64%
Discontinued operations, net of ta (329 (64%) (75) (172)
Net income (loss) $ 2518 $ (97 $ 32t $ 4r¢
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic 10,59 10,58¢ 10,59¢ 10,59(

Diluted 10,59¢ 10,61( 10,60¢ 10,59(
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Income from continuing operatiol $ 027 $ 00t $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢

Discontinued operations, net of t (0.0%) (0.06) (0.01) (0.02)

Net income (loss $ 024 $ (0.0) $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0/

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)
(In thousands)

Nine Months Ended Three Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Unaudited)
Net income (loss $ 2,512 $ 99 $ 32t $ 47z
Change in unrealized appreciation of retained @#tsrin transferred asse
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) ariglngng perioc 68 (28) 10 12
Net realized gains included in net income (¢ (75) (89 (30 (23
Change in unrealized appreciation of retained @stsrin transferred ass: (7 (1179) (20) (12)
Comprehensive income (loss $ 2,50¢ $(219 $ 30¢ $ 462

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balances, January 1, 201

Net unrealized depreciatic
Sharebased compensation expel
Dividends ($0.48 per shar

Net loss

Balances, September 30, 2012

Balances, January 1, 201

Net unrealized depreciatic
Sharebased compensation expel
Dividends ($0.375 per shar

Net income

Balances, September 30, 2013

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Nine Months Ended September 30, 201

(Unaudited)
Net
Unrealized
Appreciation
Common Cumulative
Shares of of Retained Cumulative
Beneficial Additional  Interests in Treasury  Preferred
Interest Par Paid-in Transferred Net Cumulative Stock of Total
Outstanding  Value Capital Assets Income Dividends Stock Subsidiary Equity
10,574,55 $111 $152,93: $ 394 $176,09¢ $(177,79) $(4,900) $ 90C $147,73t
- — — (117) — — — — (117)
15,000 — 11¢ — — — — — 11¢
- — — — — (5,08) — — (5,08
— = — — 97) - = — 97)
10,589,55 $111 $153,05: $ 277 $175,99¢ $(182,88) $(4,901) $ 90C $142,55!
Nine Months Ended September 30, 201
(Unaudited)
Net
Unrealized
Appreciation
Common Cumulative
Shares of of Retained Cumulative
Beneficial Additional  Interests in Treasury  Preferred
Interest Par Paid-in Transferred Net Cumulative Stock of Total
Qutstanding  Value Capital Assets Income Dividends Stock Subsidiary Equity
10,589,55 $111 $153,07: $ 27¢ $173,91° $(184,15) $(4,900) $ 90C $139,22¢
— — — " — - - — (7)
6,666 — 41 — — — — — 41
N — — — — (3,97) — — (3979
— = — — 2,51¢ — — — 2,51¢
10,596,22 $111 $153,11:. $ 271 $176,43( $(188,12" $(4,900) $ 90C $137,79¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reshcprovided by (used in) operating activit
Impairment losse
Net losses on sales of real es
Deferred income taxe
Provision for loan losses, n
Allowance for accounts receivat
Unrealized premium adjustme
Amortization and accretion, n
Sharebased compensatic
Capitalized loan origination cos
Loans funded, held for sa
Proceeds from sale of guaranteed Ic
Principal collected on loar
Loan fees collected (remitted), r
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Other asset
Borrower advance
Accounts payable and accrued expei

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitie

Cash flows from investing activities:
Loans fundec
Principal collected on loar
Principal collected on retained interests in transd assel
Purchase of furniture and equipm:
Proceeds from sales of real estate owned
Release of restricted cash and cash equiva

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of revolving credit facility, n
Payment of principal on debentures payable andtstred notes payab
Proceeds from issuance of SBIC debent
Proceeds from secured borrowir- government guaranteed loz
Payment of principal on secured borrowil- government guaranteed loe
Payment of borrowing cos
Payment of dividend

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitie

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivake
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of ye:

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Nine Months Ended
September 30

2013 2012
(Unaudited)

$ 2,51¢ (97)
13t 20¢
16 19
214 (129)
562 64¢€
29 —
574 1,22¢
(277) (102)
41 11¢
(15€) (271)
(15,945 (20,729
18,39: 11,96¢
94¢€ 49¢
83 (74)
(150) (240)
(2,667 2,67
(1,196 89¢
3,117 (3,379
(18,957 (19,779
20,47( 19,07¢
68 82
(4) (11)
1,622 67¢
— 2,23
3,20¢ 2,28¢
- (2,800)
(4,190 (5,26
14,50( 4,00(
— 8,49¢
(946) (499)
(402) (97)
(3,920 (5,05¢)
5,047 (1,220
11,35¢ (2,310
1,23( 6,50
$ 12,58¢ $ 4,19
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

Note 1. Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying interim financial statements of®P@bmmercial Trust (“PMC Commercial” or togethettwits wholly-owned subsidiaries,
“we,” “us” or “our”) have not been audited by ardapendent registered public accounting firm. Theesesolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with accounting pilegigenerally accepted in the United States of AcadlfU.S. GAAP”) for interim financial
information and with the instructions to Form 104&gcordingly, they do not include all of the infoation and footnotes required by U.S.
GAAP for complete financial statement presentatinrthe opinion of management, the financial staets include all normal recurring
adjustments necessary for a fair statement ofabelts for the interim period. All material interapany balances and transactions have been
eliminated. The results for the three and nine im®ehded September 30, 2013 are not necessaribaiive: of future financial results.
Therefore, these financial statements should ke ireeonjunction with the financial statements ates thereto included in our Annual Re|
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make est:and assumptions that affect
(1) the reported amounts of assets and liabildies$ disclosure of contingent assets and liabildtethe date of the financial statements and
(2) the reported amounts of revenues and expensegydhe period. Actual results could differ frahose estimates. Our most sensitive
estimates involve the valuation of our real estateed and determination of loan loss reserves.

Note 2. Reclassifications:

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassifiesbnform with the current period presentationede reclassifications had no effect on
previously reported net income (loss) or cash flows

Note 3. Merger Agreement:

On July 8, 2013, PMC Commercial entered into a meagreement with CIM Urban REIT, LLC (“CIM UrbarElRT") and subsidiaries of the
respective parties. CIM Urban REIT is a private cmercial REIT with Class A commercial real estateesslocated in premier urban markets
throughout the United States. The merger and dthesactions were unanimously approved by both RM@mercial's Board of Trust
Managers (the “Board”) and CIM Urban REIT’s Directo

Pursuant to the merger agreement, CIM Urban REtii@raffiliates will receive approximately 22.0lhain newly-issued PMC Commercial
common shares of beneficial interest and approxaiy®5.0 million newly-issued PMC Commercial preégt shares. Each preferred share wil
be convertible into seven common shares of bemaéfitierest, resulting in the issuance of an agapegf approximately 477.2 million comm
shares of beneficial interest in the merger andratfansactions after the conversion. This wilresgnt approximately 97.8% of PMC
Commercial’s outstanding shares.

All PMC Commercial common shares of beneficial iagt that are outstanding immediately prior totthaesactions will remain outstanding
following the transactions. In addition, PMC Comugial shareholders of record at the close of théness day prior to the closing of the
transactions will receive a special cash divideh#5050 per common share of beneficial intereshegaid shortly after closing.

Based on an arrangement with CIM Urban REIT, legal due diligence expenses related to the potengager incurred during a certain
period of time were reimbursable. We incurred $8@a,of costs which were reimbursed by CIM UrbanREI

The merger and other transactions are contractradlyired to be completed no later than DecembgP@13. The transactions are subject to &
number of conditions that the parties are workimgadtisfy. However, no assurance can be givertliearansactions will be completed by the
end of the year.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)
Note 4. Loans Receivable, net:
Loans receivable, net, consisted of the following:
September 3 December 3:
2013 2012
(In thousands
Commercial mortgage loal $ 114,74 $ 128,40:
SBIC commercial mortgage loa 54,04 47,621
SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowi 35,218 37,90¢
SBA 7(a) loan: 28,66 28,19¢
Total loans receivabl 232,66! 242,12
Adjusted by:
Deferred capitalized costs, r 23¢ 277
Loan loss reserve (2,852 (3,419
Loans receivable, ni $ 230,05: $ 238,99:

Commercial mortgage loans
Represents the loans held by the parent compang, €dmmercial Trust.

SBIC commercial mortgage loans
Represents loans of our licensed Small Businessstment Company (“SBIC”) subsidiaries.

SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowings

Represents the government guaranteed portion n$§ lvaich were sold with the proceeds received filoensale reflected as secured
borrowings — government guaranteed loans (a ltgholh our consolidated balance sheet). There redit risk associated with these loans
since the SBA has guaranteed payment of the pahdiperefore, no loan loss reserves are recordade$35.2 million and $37.9 million,
respectively of government guaranteed portiontie$e SBA 7(a) loans included in loans receivabi&egtember 30, 2013 and December 31,
2012.

SBA 7(a) loans

Represents the non-government guaranteed retaorédrpof loans originated under the SBA 7(a) permgrand the government guaranteed
portion of loans that have not yet been fully futhde sold. The balance is net of retained loanadiats of $2.6 million and $2.1 million at
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, reselgctiv

Concentration Risks

We have certain concentrations of investments. t8abally all of our revenue is generated from wanllateralized by hospitality properties.
At both September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2Qkdpans were 94% concentrated in the hospitalithstry. Any economic factors that
negatively impact the hospitality industry, inclndirecessions, depressed commercial real estaketsatravel restrictions, gasoline prices,
bankruptcies or other political or geopolitical at& could have a material adverse effect on manftial condition and results of operations.

At September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, 1204 5%, respectively, of our loans were collatesliby properties in Texas. In addition,
at September 30, 2013, 10% of our loans were eollized by properties in Virginia. No other sthsel a concentration of 10% or greater of
our loans receivable at September 30, 2013 or DeeeB1, 2012. A decline in economic conditionsny atate in which we have a
concentration of investments could have a matadskrse effect on our financial condition and rssof operations.

We have not loaned more than 10% of our assetsytsiagle borrower; however, we have an affiliagedup of obligors representing
approximately 5% of our loans receivable at botht&aber 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012. Any detlitiee financial status of this group
could have a material adverse effect on our fireraindition and results of operations.

8



Table of Contents

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
Aging
The following tables represent an aging of our LloReceivable Subject to Credit Risk (loans recdesiss SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secure
borrowings as the SBA has guaranteed payment girtheipal). Balances are prior to loan loss ressrand deferred capitalized costs, net.

September 30, 201

Commercial

Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Categony Totals Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands
Current (1) $193,08¢ 97.8%  $165,00¢ 97.€% $28,08: 98.(%
Between 29 and 59 days delinquent 4,114 2.1% 3,78: 2.2% 331 1.1%
Between 60 and 89 days delinqu — — — — — —
Over 89 days delinque 24¢ 0.1% — — 24¢ 0.€%

$197,45. 100.(% $168,78¢ 100.(% $28,66! 100.(%

(1) Includes $5.8 million of loans classified as traedbdebt restructurings which were current at Sepem30, 2013 based on revised n
payment terms
(2) Includes two commercial loans totaling $2.3 milliwhich are classified as troubled debt restructgsr

December 31, 201

Commercial
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Categony Totals Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands

Current (1) $198,28: 97.1% $170,42¢ 96.€% $27,85: 98.&%
Between 29 and 59 days delinqu 2,82¢ 1.4% 2,48 1.4% 34z 1.2%
Between 60 and 89 days delinqu 1 — — — 1 —
Over 89 days delinque 3,111 1.5% 3,111 1.6% — —

$204,21¢  100.96 $176,02: 100.% $28,19¢  100.(%

(1) Includes $7.6 million of loans classified as traedbdebt restructurings which were current at Decen8i, 2012 based on revised n
payment terms

Loan Loss Reservi

Management closely monitors our loans which regenmauation for loan loss reserves based on speadintification metrics which are
classified into three categories: Doubtful, Subd#ad and Other Assets Especially Mentioned (“OAE8gether “Specific Identification
Loans”). Loans classified as Doubtful are generalns which are not complying with their contradtierms, the collection of the balance of
the principal is considered impaired and on whighfair value of the collateral is less than theaming unamortized principal balance. These
loans are typically placed on non-accrual statusaae generally in the foreclosure process. Lotassified as Substandard are generally thos
loans that are either not complying or had preuionst complied with their contractual terms anddather credit weaknesses which may
make payment default or principal exposure likaly tot yet certain. Loans classified as OAEM aneegally loans for which the credit quality
of the borrowers has temporarily deteriorated. Tally the borrowers are current on their paymemsyever, they may be delinquent on their
property taxes, insurance, or franchise fees or loeaynder agreements which provide for interest paiyments during a short period of time.

9
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

Management has classified our Loans ReceivableeSuty) Credit Risk as follows (balances represenimmvestment in the loans prior to loan
loss reserves and deferred capitalized costs):

September 30, 201

Commercia
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Totals % Loans % Loans %

(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory $184,53« 93.5% $156,76( 92.% $27,77: 96.€%
OAEM 4,20 2.1% 3,92( 2.2% 28t 1.C%
Substandar 7,32: 3.7% 7,14(C 4.2% 18¢ 0.€%
Doubtful 1,39( 0.7% 96¢ 0.€% 421 1.5%

$197,45. 100.(% $168,78¢ 100.(% $28,66! 100.(%

December 31, 201

Commercis
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Totals % Loans % Loans %

(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory $187,74¢ 92.(% $159,99: 90.% $27,75¢ 98.5%
OAEM 81 — — — 81 0.2%
Substandar 13,04: 6.4% 12,91 7.2% 12¢ 0.4%
Doubtful 3,34¢ 1.€6% 3,111 1.8% 234 0.8%

$204,21¢  100.96 $176,02: 100.% $28,19¢  100.(%

Our provision for loan losses (excluding reductionfan losses and recoveries) as a percentagerafeighted average outstanding Loans
Receivable Subject to Credit Risk was 0.47% an@%.68uring the nine months ended September 30, @0d2012, respectively. To the
extent one or several of our borrowers experiergrafecant operating difficulties and we are forcediquidate the collateral underlying the
loan, future losses may be substantial.

The activity in our loan loss reserves was as fzsto

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2!

Commercie

Mortgage SBA7(a
Total Loans Loans

(In thousands
Balance, beginning of ye $ 3,41 $ 2,85( $ 568
Provision for loan losse 96( 767 193
Reduction of loan losst (39¢) (395) 3
Principal balances writt-off (1,129 (98¢) (135)
Balance, end of peric $ 2,85: $ 2,23¢ $ 61€

10
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2!
Commercie
Mortgage SBA7(a
Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Balance, beginning of ye. $ 1,812 $ 1,32¢ $ 482
Provision for loan losse 1,20¢ 1,102 10C
Reduction of loan losst (149 (11%) (34)
Recoveries (40¢) (40¢) —
Principal balances writt-off (397) (219) (172)
Balance, end of peric $ 2,067 $ 1,69 $ 377

Information on those loans considered to be impdmans was as follows:

September 30, 201

Commercie
Mortgage SBA 7(a
Total Loans Loans

(In thousands
Impaired loans requiring reserves $ 6,52¢ $ 6,227 $ 301
Impaired loans expected to be fully recoverable 2,04¢ 1,92¢ 12C
Total impaired loans (z $ 8,57 $ 8,151 $ 421
Loan loss reserve $ 84C $ 697 $ 14%

December 31, 201

Commercie
Mortgage SBA 7(a
Total Loans Loans

(In thousands
Impaired loans requiring reserves $10,92: $ 10,04¢ $ 87¢
Impaired loans expected to be fully recoverable 2,24¢ 2,12: 121
Total impaired loans (2 $13,17: $ 12,17: $ 99¢
Loan loss reserve $ 1,53t $ 1,38 $ 15¢

(1) Balances represent our recorded investment. Induo@ns classified as troubled debt restructurir

(2) The unpaid principal balance of our impairechumercial mortgage loans was $8,625,000 at SepteB8the2013. The unpaid principal
balance of our impaired SBA 7(a) loans (excludimg government guaranteed portion) was $455,00@ptesnber 30, 201

(3) The unpaid principal balance of our impairechumercial mortgage loans was $12,703,000 at Decerdbe?012. The unpaid principal
balance of our impaired SBA 7(a) loans (excludimg government guaranteed portion) was $362,000ezeimber 31, 201.

11
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended September
2013 2012
Commercie Commercie
Mortgage SBA 7(a Mortgage SBA 7(a
Total Loans Loans Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Average impaired loar $ 978 $ 877¢ $1,00¢ $9,88:8 $ 8,79¢ $1,08¢
Interest income on impaired loa $ 11z $ 11 $ 2 $ 88 % 84 $ 4
Nine Months Ended September .
2013 2012
Commercie Commercie
SBA 7(a SBA 7(a
Mortgage Mortgage
Total Loans Loans Total Loans Loans
(In thousands
Average impaired loar $11,91C $ 10,67¢ $1,23¢/ $8,78¢ $ 8,080 $ 7Ot
Interest income on impaired loa $ 322 $ 28 $ 39 $ 277 $ 266 $ 11

Our recorded investment in Non-Accrual Loans att&aper 30, 2013 of $1,737,000 was comprised of $0Wof SBA 7(a) loans and a
$1,336,000 commercial mortgage loan. Our recordeestment in Non-Accrual Loans at December 31, 2015,768,000 was comprised of
an $855,000 SBA 7(a) loan (including the governnggraranteed portion of $634,000 on which we haveradit loss exposure) and
$4,913,000 of commercial mortgage loans. We dichaot any loans receivable past due 90 days or wiiidh were accruing interest at
September 30, 2013 or December 31, 2012.

Detailed information on our troubled debt restruictys was as follows at September 30, 2013:

Commercial Mortgage Loar

Unpaid
Recorded Principal
Investmen Balance
(In thousands
Troubled debt restructurings requiring resetl $ 6,20: $ 6,64¢
Troubled debt restructurings without reser 1,93: 1,97¢
Total troubled debt restructurin $ 8,13¢ $ 8,62t
Number of loan: 6
Loan loss reserve $ 697
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December 31, 201
Commercial Mortgage Loar SBA 7(a) Loar

Unpaid
Unpaid Principa

Recorded Principal Recorded
Investmen Balance Investmer Balance

(In thousands
Troubled debt restructurings requiring reserves $ 10,04¢ $ 10,53 $ 854 $ 84¢€
Troubled debt restructurings without reser 2,12: 2,17z — —

Total troubled debt restructurin $ 12,17. $ 12,70: $ 854 $ 84€

Number of loan: 8 1

Loan loss reserve $ 1,382 $ 13C

(1) At December 31, 2012, the SBA 7(a) loan recordedsiment and unpaid principal balance include tbeegnment guaranteed portion
$634,000 on which we have no credit loss exposudenghich, during 2013, was reclassified from seduserrowings to loans receivab
net, since it was repurchased by the SBA froméhersdary marke

Our troubled debt restructurings include loans witiecorded investment at September 30, 2013 éfrélion which were modified

voluntarily under agreements to allow extendedr@gteonly periods instead of the principal andriege payments required by the notes. In
addition, loans with a recorded investment at Septr 30, 2013 of $2.8 million were modified involarily through Chapter 11 bankruptcy
proceedings. The bankruptcy plans were confirmed miodified terms including extended interest catyl amortization periods. Of our
troubled debt restructurings, loans with a recordedstment of $5.2 million are no longer complyinih their modified terms, including lack
of required payments at September 30, 2013. A paydefault is defined as a payment that becomksaat 30 days past due after the date th
loan was restructured and/or non-payment or ladkva#ly payment of other loan related obligationstsas real estate taxes.

Note 5. Other Assets:
Other assets consisted of the following:

September 3 December 3.
2013 2012
(In thousands
Deferred borrowing costs, n $ 1,55¢ $ 1,21¢
Servicing asset, ni 1,52 1,261
Deferred tax asset, n 1,417 1,62¢
Investment in a variable interest eni 82C 82C
Retained interests in transferred as 69¢ 775
Interest receivabl 68¢ 62C
Prepaid expenses and depo 331 33C
Real estate owne 56 73¢
Other 171 99
$ 7,26( $ 7,48¢
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Note 6. Debt:
Information on our debt was as follows:
Weighted Average
Coupon Rate &
September 3 December 3:
September 30, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Dollars in thousands, except footnot
Secured borrowings - government guarantet
loans:
Loans sold for a premium and excess
spreac- principal $ 29,47( $ 32,06 4.09% 4.0%
Loans sold for a premium and excess
spreac- deferred premium 2,822 3,09¢ NA NA
Loans sold for excess spre 5,74: 5,84 1.58% 1.5¢%
38,03t 41,00¢
Debentures payable ( 27,50( 17,19( 3.8™% 4.47%
Junior subordinated not: 27,07( 27,07( 3.52% 3.61%
Revolving credit facility (2 11,90( 11,90( 2.7%% 2.3(%
Debt $ 104,50 $ 97,16¢

(1)

(2)

Our SBIC subsidiaries issued a total of $6,000,0f debentures in March 2013 at an interest tdt2.35% plus an annual fee of 0.515%

and a total of $8,500,000 of debentures in Aug0482at an interest rate of 3.64% plus an annualde@.76%. The debentures mature in
10 years and have semi-annual interest only paysnamtfl maturity. We repaid $4,190,000 of debergwshich matured on September 1,
2013.

Proceeds from the revolving credit facility were/g@n0,000 and $34,400,000 during the nine montde@September 30, 2013 ¢

2012, respectively. Repayments on the revolvingdjtciacility were $47,800,000 and $37,200,000 dgrihe nine months ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Durimgust 2013, we extended the maturity date on thavimg credit facility to June 30,
2015.

Principal payments on, and estimated amortizatfpouwr debt at September 30, 2013 was as follows:

(1)

Secured Borrowing

Deferred All Other
Twelve Months Ending September : Total Principal (1 Premiums (2 Principal (3
(In thousands
2014 $ 1,21t $ 1,06¢ $ 14¢€ $ —
2015 17,15: 1,10¢ 14¢€ 15,90(
2016 1,29( 1,14¢ 14¢€ —
2017 1,33- 1,18¢ 14¢€ —
2018 1,37¢ 1,22¢ 14€ —
Thereafte! 82,14: 29,47¢ 2,097 50,57(
$104,50! $ 35,211 $ 2,82C $ 66,47(

Principal payments are generally dependent upot dksvs received from the underlying loans. Ouimeate of their repayment is bas
on scheduled principal payments on the underlyiragné. Our estimate will differ from actual amoutttshe extent we experience
prepayments and/or loan liquidations or cha-offs. No payment is due unless payments are mt&iom the borrowers on the
underlying loans
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(2) Represents cash premiums collected on loans sokkéess spread and a cash premium of 10% whiclam@tized as a reduction
interest expense over the life of the loan. Ounede of their amortization will differ from actuamounts to the extent we experience
prepayments and/or loan liquidations or cha-offs.

(3) Represents the revolving credit facility, juniobsudinated notes and debentures paya

Note 7. Share-Based Compensation Plans:

We granted 30,000 option awards on June 8, 20&8 akercise price of $7.80 (the then current maskiee) and recorded compensation
expense of $12,000 during the nine months endete®égr 30, 2012.

We issued an aggregate of 5,000 shares to the Bédimist Managers on June 8, 2012 at the thereotimarket price of the shares of $7.80.
These shares vested immediately upon issuancee@deded compensation expense of $39,000 duringiti'emonths ended September 30,
2012 related to these shares.

We issued an aggregate of 6,666 shares to our &xeotfficers on March 14, 2013 at the then curraatket price of the shares of $7.22 (the
closing price on March 13, 2013). We issued aneggte of 10,000 shares to our executive officerslarch 12, 2012 at the then current
market price of the shares of $7.27 (the closirigepon March 9, 2012). The restricted shares vased on two years of continuous service
one-third of the shares vesting immediately upsnasice of the shares and one-third vesting atriti@eeach of the next two years. Restrictec
share awards provide for accelerated vesting iktigea change in control (as defined in the pl@ompensation expense related to the
restricted shares is being recognized over thengeperiods. We recorded compensation expense,0088nd $12,000 during the three
months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, resplgctind $41,000 and $68,000 during the nine moatisled September 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively, related to restricted sharessofA September 30, 2013, there was $21,000 of tiot@cognized compensation expense re

to restricted shares which will be recognized dliernext two years.

Note 8. Other Income:
Other income consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 3( September 3(
2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands
Prepayment fee $ 33¢ $ 254 $ 38¢ $ 278
Servicing income 16C 132 42€ 37C
Income from Retained interests in transferred at 42 43 122 14¢€
Loan related incom- other 33 63 113 1732
Other 27 15 80 72

$ 601 $ 507 $1,131 $1,03¢

15



Table of Contents

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)
Note 9. Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax:
Discontinued operations, net of tax, consistedeffollowing:
Three Months Ende Nine Months Ende
September 3( September 3(
2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands
Net operating losse $ (52) $ (14€) $ (190 $(41€)
Impairment losse (18) (7 (13%) (20¢)
Net losses on sales of real es (15) (29 (16) (19
Income tax benefi 9 — 18 —
Discontinued operations, net of t $ (75 $ (172 $(329) $ (64%)

Net operating losses relate to the operations afdiny costs of our real estate owned includedscahtinued operations. As of September
2013, we had sold all of our operating real estateed. We continue to have holding costs on ouraigimg real estate owned.

During July 2013, we foreclosed on the underlyintiateral (limited service hospitality propertiexf)three loans with an estimated fair value a
foreclosure of $2.3 million. We sold one of theseperties in July 2013 for $1,175,000, receivechgasceeds of $200,000 and financed the
remainder. No gain or loss was recorded on thesa@tion. We sold another of these properties irnebelper 2013 for cash proceeds of
$965,000 and recorded a loss of $15,000.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2012¢reelosed on and sold the underlying collatdialited service hospitality properties)
two loans with a combined estimated fair valueoa¢¢losure of $1,481,000. One property was sol&10875,000 including cash proceeds of
$550,000 and financing of $825,000. The other pitypeas sold solely for cash proceeds. No gaiross Was recorded on these sales. In
addition, we sold a property during the nine morthded September 30, 2012 with an estimated faievaf $76,000 and recorded a loss of
$19,000.

Impairment losses represent declines in the estifalr value of our real estate owned subsequeinittal valuation.

Note 10. Earnings (Loss) Per Share (“EPS”):

The computations of basic EPS are based on ouhtegigaverage shares outstanding. During the thmeé@iae months ended September 30,
2013, the weighted average shares outstandingineneased by 10,000 and 2,000 shares, respectteelgflect the dilutive effect of share
options. No shares were added to the weighted geetaares outstanding for purposes of calculatinged EPS during the three months en
September 30, 2012 as options were anti-dilutivginig the nine months ended September 30, 201 2yd¢ighted average shares outstanding
were increased by 26,000 shares to reflect théwkleffect of share options.

Not included in the computation of diluted EPS weunéstanding options to purchase 113,000 commorestturing the three months enc
September 30, 2012 and 69,000 common shares dzaiigof the nine months ended September 30, 2@L3GkP because the options’
exercise prices were greater than the average maiike of the shares.
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Note 11. Dividends Declared:
Dividends declared during 2013 were as follows:
Amount
Record Dat¢ Date Paic Per Shar
March 28, 2013 April 8, 2013 $0.12¢
June 28, 201 July 8, 201z 0.12¢
September 30, 201 October 7, 201 0.12°¢
$0.37¢

During 2013, due primarily to payment of severaexpenses and realized losses on our foreclosupegi®s, we anticipate a taxable loss.
Thus, all or a portion of our dividends will be desd returns of capital.

Pursuant to the merger agreement, we are limitggidoterly dividends of $0.125 per share untilriterger is completed or the merger
agreement is otherwise terminated.

We have a covenant within our revolving credit ligcthat requires us to maintain a minimum net thaf $132 million which may limit our
ability to pay out returns of capital as dividendhis restriction has not historically limited tamount of dividends we have paid and
management does not believe that it will restiittife dividend payments.

Note 12. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Infaration:
Our non-cash activities were as follows:

Nine Months Ended September .

2013 2012
(In thousands
Reclassification from loans receivable to real testavnec $ 2,12¢ $ 1,481
Loans receivable originated to facilitate salesead estate owne $ 97t $ 82¢
Reclassification from secured borrowings to loateivable, ne $  1,74¢ $ —

Note 13. Fair Value Measurements:

For impaired loans measured at fair value on aewnring basis, the following table provides théneated fair value of the related individual
assets. We used Level 3 inputs to determine thimatstd fair value of our impaired loans as follows:

September 3 December 3:
2013 2012
(In thousands
Impaired loans (1 $  7,73: $ 11,63:

(1) Represents carrying value determined based on neamag's assessment of the estimated fair value of tHatecal based on numerous
factors including operating statistics to the extawailable, appraised value of the collateral, tssessed value and market environm
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Our retained interests in transferred assets (1Redalnterests”pre recorded at estimated fair value measuredreowaring basis using Level
inputs. In determining the estimated fair valu@of Retained Interests, we use a present valuaitpahwith assumptions of prepayment
tendencies and a current discount rate. The prepatyrate used was 15% at both September 30, 2@LBerember 31, 2012. The discount
rates used were 12.4% at September 30, 2013 arthXkit.December 31, 2012. No credit losses are asbton our Retained Interests since
SBA has guaranteed the principal on these loars eftimated fair value of our Retained InteresSegtember 30, 2013 and December 31,
2012 was $699,000 and $773,000, respectively.

For real estate owned, our carrying value approteémthe estimated fair value at the time of foreate and the lower of cost or fair value
thereafter. We use Level 3 inputs to determinesitamated fair value of our real estate owned. ddreying value of our real estate owned is
established at the time of foreclosure based upmmagement’s assessment of its fair value basedmenmous factors including operating
statistics to the extent available, the appraigddey tax assessed value and market environmeateStimated fair value of our real estate
owned at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 288 356,000 and $739,000, respectively.

The estimated fair values of those financial insieats which are not recorded at fair value on omsolidated balance sheets were as follows

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value Level
(In thousands
Assets:
Loans Receivable Subject to Credit R $194,42¢ $176,28. $200,64: $181,11. 3
SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject to secured mongs 35,62: 39,96 38,34¢ 43,09¢ 3
Liabilities:
SBIC debenture 27,50( 26,47¢ 17,19( 18,021 3
Secured borrowing- government guaranteed log 38,03t 38,03t 41,00¢ 41,00¢ 3
Revolving credit facility 11,90( 11,90( 11,90( 11,90( 3
Junior subordinated not 27,07( 25,18¢ 27,07( 22,59: 3

We used Level 3 inputs to determine the estima@dsalue of our financial instruments. In geneestimates of fair value differ from the
carrying amounts of the financial assets and lidxs| primarily as a result of the effects of dignting future cash flows. Considerable judgn
is required to interpret market data and develdipneses of fair value. Accordingly, the estimatessented may not be indicative of the
amounts we could realize in a current market exgban

Loans Receivable Subject to Credit ROur loans receivable are recorded at cost andtadjlxy net loan origination fees and discounts. In
order to determine the estimated fair value ofloans receivable, we use a present value techmaguke anticipated future cash flows using
certain assumptions including a discount rate baseclrrent market interest rates, prepayment teside and potential loan losses. Significan
increases (decreases) in any of these inputs latiso would result in a significantly lower (highdair value measurement. In the absence of
readily ascertainable market value, the estimasdaevof our loans receivable will differ from thalues that would be placed on the portfolio if
a ready market for the loans receivable existed.

SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject to secured lairrgs: Represents the government guaranteed portiawaofliwhich were sold with the
proceeds received from the sale reflected as se@aeowings — government guaranteed loans (ditigbin our consolidated balance sheet).
There is no credit risk associated with these |leamse the SBA has guaranteed payment of the pahdn order to determine the estimated
fair value of our loans receivable, we use a priegaine technique for the anticipated future castv$ using certain assumptions including a
discount rate based on current market interess taténg into consideration the lack of credit résid prepayment tendencies.
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SBIC debentures payable and junior subordinate@sidihe estimated fair value is based on a presenewaliculation based on
management’s estimate of prices of the same ofagimistruments after considering market risksreuirinterest rates, and remaining
maturities.

Secured borrowings — government guaranteed lo@ihe: estimated fair value approximates cost asnieedst rates on these secured
borrowings approximates current market interegtsrdincludes the unamortized deferred cash premiatfiected on the sale of the governn
guaranteed portions of the loans.

Revolving credit facilityThe carrying amount is a reasonable estimatioaiof/flue as the interest rate on this instrumgrariable and is at a
current market interest rate.

Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies:
Loan Commitment

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totteadcustomer provided the terms establishedercéimtract are met. Our outstanding loan
commitments and approvals to fund loans were $28l®n at September 30, 2013, of which $18.5 noilliwere for prime-based loans to be
originated by our SBA 7(a) subsidiary, the governtrguaranteed portion of which is intended to Hd.g6ommitments generally have fixed
expiration dates. Since some commitments are eggeatexpire without being drawn upon, total connneibt amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements.

Operating Lease
We lease office space in Dallas, Texas under & ledgch expires in February 2015. Future minimuasépayments are as follows:

Twelve Months

Ending
September 3( Total
(In thousands
2014 $ 21€
2015 91
$ 307

Employment Agreemer

We have employment agreements with our two exeeutfficers for three-year terms expiring Decemlgr2915. Under certain
circumstances, as defined within the agreemergsagheements provide for (1) severance compensattionange in control payments to the
executive officer in an amount equal to 2.99 titiesaverage of the last three years annual compengmid to the executive officer and

(2) death and disability payments in an amount kiguavo times and one time, respectively, the ahsalary paid to the executive officer.

Litigation

REIT Redux, L.P. et al v. PMC Commercial TrusgleOn October 9, 2013, a putative class action andatére lawsuit was filed in the Dall
County Court at Law No. 5 in Dallas County, Texgaiast and purportedly on behalf of PMC Commerdiak complaint names as defend:
PMC Commercial, members of the Board and execuatifreers of PMC Commercial and CIM Urban REIT. Tlaintiffs assert the action as a
direct action, as well as a derivative action alfeha, among other things, that the Board breathed®MC Commercial Declaration of Trust
and conspired to deprive the plaintiffs and the<laf their right to vote to approve or decline inerger, to approve or decline of the sale of
PMC Commercial and to approve or decline the aightion of the PMC Commercial common shares necgssaupport the
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conversion rights of the PMC Commercial preferredrss to be issued pursuant to the merger agreemtenplaintiffs allege, among other
things, that the Board breached its fiduciary dubig approving and recommending the transactiotisetehareholders without due regard for
the fairness of the transaction, failing to maxienalue for the shareholders, engaging in bad &aithself-dealing by preferring transactions
that further enriched the trust managers at themrsg of the shareholders, and conspiring to depitezgehareholders of their voting power and
prerogatives. The complaint alleges that CIM UrR&iT aided, abetted and induced those breacheduafidry duty. The complaint further
alleges that the causes of action were aggravateddss negligence and intentional and maliciousngdoing. The complaint seeks an order
enjoining a vote on the transactions contemplatethé merger agreement, an order certifying théenas a class action for damages, darr
for lost shareholder value, exemplary damagesiraycs fees and costs, appointment of a receif/grstice so demands, in order to preserve
and maximize shareholder value, and all other selidf as the court may find reasonable and necgssavhich plaintiffs may be entitled. We
have denied all of the allegations in the complamd intend to vigorously defend against theseyatlens. However, no assurance can be ¢
as to the outcome of this lawsuit.

In the normal course of business we are periogigaltty to certain legal actions and proceedingsliring matters that are generally incidenta
to our businessi(e., collection of loans receivable). In managementmiom, the resolution of these legal actions aratpedings will not
have a material adverse effect on our consoliditedcial statements.

Merger Relate(
Up to approximately $3.4 million of transaction $eeelated to the potential merger are contingenohugmnsummation of the merger.

Under certain circumstances, if the potential medges not occur, we may be required to pay CIMadrREIT a termination fee equal to $4.0
million plus reimburse CIM Urban REIT for certaifits out-of-pocket expenses up to $700,000 (exow&542,000 of expenses reimbursed
by CIM Urban REIT).

In connection with the potential merger, our tweextive officers agreed to amend their employmgne@ments effective upon consummatior
of the merger. These amended employment agreenventd replace their existing employment agreementsyide for various payments and
equity awards and adjusts the calculation for sewa¥ benefits.

SBA Related

If the SBA establishes that a loss on an SBA guaeghloan is attributable to significant technigeficiencies in the manner in which the loan
was originated, funded or serviced by our SBLC,3B& may seek recovery of the principal loss reldtethe deficiency from us. With resp
to the guaranteed portion of SBA loans that hawnisald, the SBA will first honor its guarantee dnein seek compensation from us in the
event that a loss is deemed to be attributabledonical deficiencies. Based on historical expeeemwe do not expect that this contingency is
probable to be asserted. However, if assertedyuitddoe material to the financial statements.

In certain instances, including liquidation or dpeoff of an SBA guaranteed loan, we typically haveceivable for the SBA’s guaranteed
portion of legal fees, operating expenses, profgaxgs paid, etc. related to the loan or the caigdti(upon foreclosure). While we believe
expenses incurred were justified and necessamhéocare and preservation of the collateral antiwthe established rules of the SBA, there
can be no assurance that the SBA will reimbursénusddition, reimbursement from the SBA is a tioeasuming and lengthy process and the
SBA may seek compensation from us related to reisgiment of expenses which it does not believe wecessary for the care and
preservation of the loan or its collateral. Althbuge SBA has never declined to reimburse us $gpatrtion of material expenses, no assuranc
can be given that the SBA would not do so in tharki We have evaluated our SBA receivables anidveethat our financial statements fairly
reflect these receivables at their appropriateeatzable value.
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ITEM 2.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition
and Results of Operations

This Form 10-Q contains certain forward-lookingtstaents within the meaning of Section 27A of tlcer8ies Act of 1933 and Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which arentiee to be covered by the safe harbors createeliyeiSuch forwardboking statements ci
be identified by the use of forward-looking termiagy such as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “intend,” “be lieve,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” or
“continue,” or the negative thereof or other varians or similar words or phrases. These statemigiciade the plans and objectives of
management for future operations, including, butlimited to, plans and objectives relating to figgrowth of the loan portfolio and
availability of funds. The forward-looking staterteeimcluded herein are based on current expectatemd there can be no assurance that
these expectations will be attained. Assumptiolading to the foregoing involve judgments with resfto, among other things, future
economic, competitive and market conditions angréubusiness decisions, all of which are diffiarlimpossible to predict accurately and
many of which are beyond our control. Although wbdve that the assumptions underlying the forwlanking statements are reasonable, .
of the assumptions could be inaccurate and, thezethere can be no assurance that the forwarditopktatements included in this Form 10-
Q will prove to be accurate. In light of the sigodint uncertainties inherent in the forward-lookistatements included herein, the inclusion of
such information should not be regarded as a regméstion by us or any other person that our objexgtiand plans will be achieved. Readers
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on fodvimoking statements. Forward-looking statemeneagmnly as of the date they are made.
We do not undertake to update them to reflect chatigat occur after the date they are made.

The following discussion of our financial conditionat September 30, 2013 and results of operationsrfthe three and nine months
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 should be readtanjunction with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2012. For a more detailed descriptiaf the risks affecting our financial condition andresults of operations, see “Risk
Factors” in Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 and “Riskdetors” in Item 1A of this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Merger

On July 8, 2013, we entered into a definitive meagreement with CIM Urban REIT, a private commar&8lEIT with Class A
commercial real estate assets located in premiimumarkets throughout the United States, and dialoigis of the respective parties. The
merger and other transactions are subject to oertatomary closing conditions, including the appiaf PMC Commercial’'s shareholders
and are contractually required to be completechter than December 31, 2013. However, no assuraacelse given that we will be able to
complete the transactions by this date. Mergestetion costs include legal, accounting, investradntsory, filing and printing costs, among
other costs. These costs have been, and will asmtim be, incurred and will be material. As of ®emver 30, 2013, we had incurred
approximately $1,600,000 of transaction costs. Edkiolg fees contingent upon consummation of the eresge expect to incur an additional
approximately $1,100,000 of transaction costs dytire fourth quarter of 2013.

To the extent the merger is completed, we plai}anfest primarily in substantially stabilized reatate and real estate-related assets i
high density, high barrier-to-entry urban markét®tighout North America, in a manner similar to ¢herent investment strategy of CIM
Urban Partners, L.P. (“CIM Urban”), the operatindpsidiary of CIM Urban REIT, and (2) continue tagimate loans to small businesses
collateralized by first liens on the real estat¢hef related businesses, in accordance with oweruinvestment strategy but with a focus on
expanding our existing business of originating kthrough the SBA 7(a) Program. Our lending busing8 continue to be managed by our
existing employees and management team. The opesaif our real estate business will be manageghtsffiliate of CIM Urban (“CIM
Group”) that will provide the day-to-day managemeh€CIM Urban’s operations. CIM Group will manag@sh aspects of our real estate
business to the extent the merger is completeditémdnticipated that PMC Commercial will be ghréncipal investment vehicle through wh
CIM Group will place substantially stabilized regitate investments. We expect to generate additraihse by:

. expanding the existing CIM Urban portfolio throutfpe acquisition of substantially stabilized redhés and real estatelated asse
at yields which are accretive relative to the teededividend
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. increasing the leverage of the CIM Urban real egpairtfolio from its current ratio to a ratio mareline with the broad universe of
REITs, and to the extent additional borrowing irttavailable, subsequently investing the procegdsaidditional investments; ali

. expanding over time into new real estate-relatéidiies supported by CIM Group’broad real estate investment capabilities. T
activities may include (1) originating and/or intieg in a variety of loan products, including, mat limited to, mezzanine loans,
commercial real estate loans and other types oflo@) real estate development activities to ereate property or otherwise,
and/or (3) forming an open-ended REIT to raise timthl capital from institutional investors, whialould involve a joint venture
with CIM Urban.

Business Strategy and Impact of Government Shutdown

We are committed to enhancing our core operatigreohtinuing to focus on maintaining and increasing SBA 7(a) Program loan
origination volume, emphasizing our SBIC loan araion volume and increasing our loan originationtside of our SBA and SBIC
programs. We have increased our marketing efforidantify more loan origination opportunities BA eligible loans with a principal
amount greater than $2.0 million and have fundeérsé of these larger loans during the nine moetided September 30, 2013. Despite
increased efforts, in many instances if eitherdapportunities do not meet our underwriting standatide borrowers do not meet SBA 7(a)
Program eligibility requirements or the loans aedo be financed through more traditional lendsngrces, we may not be able to continue t
originate these larger balance SBA 7(a) Programd@ad these levels. However, we remain optimistd bur marketing efforts will result in
additional larger balance SBA 7(a) Program loagipation opportunities. Our portfolio continueshi® predominantly comprised of variable-
rate loans, which when combined with the histolycllw level of interest rates, has continued tgatesely impact our results of operations.
We should experience increased revenues if intesess rise.

The recent government shutdown which began Octbp2013 and ended October 17, 2013, affected dlityab originate SBA 7(a)
loans during this time as Congress failed to appbudget which in turn eliminated availabilityfohds for this loan program. We were not
able to get approvals for new SBA 7(a) loans duthegshutdown and are dependent upon the Federairgnent to maintain the SBA 7(a)
program. We could be materially and adversely &by circumstances or events limiting the avdlitgof funds for this loan program. In
addition, the budget as approved expires in Jarn2@ty. At such time, we could again experiencevegonent shutdown which would affect
our ability to originate government guaranteed $oand to sell the government guaranteed portidhesfe loans in the secondary market.

General Economic Environment
Portfolio I mpact

The recession subjected our borrowers to finarstiaks. Due to the prolonged economic downturrtla@durrent economic environme
we believe that in general, our borrowers’ equityheir properties has been eroded and may fuettoele which may result in an increase in
foreclosure activity and credit losses. The laggmpact of the adverse economic conditions mayinaatto have an adverse effect on the
financial condition of individual borrowers and tlmited service hospitality industry which may e the establishment of significant
additional loan loss reserves and the effect onresults of operations and financial condition rbaymaterial. We continue to experience is
related to our borrowers including payment issugsiduencies, non-payment or lack of timely paynwneal estate taxes, requests for
payment deferrals and extended interest only psriedk of cash flow, potential loss of franchideterioration of the physical property (our
collateral) and declining property values. Typigalbsses on real estate secured loans are naraficant as non-real estate secured loans du
to the borrowers’ equity in their properties, tladue of the underlying collateral, the cash flowsf operations of the businesses and other
factors, such as having recourse to the guarantors.

As part of our efforts to assist those borrowers ate experiencing negative cash flows, we haverigally temporarily or permanently
modified the terms of certain loans receivablearenhallowed reduced payments. In some instanceareveot yet able to determine if these
concessions were, or will be, sufficient to imprakrese borrowers’ cash flows such that future ncalions will not be necessary. We have
made additional modifications to assist some oehgorrowers. In other instances, borrowers hafsutted on their modified terms. We also
have temporarily or permanently modified the teohsertain loans receivable or have allowed redymanents to borrowers who have just
recently begun experiencing negative cash flowsbéleve that economic conditions are improvingluding those associated with the
hospitality industry. However, there can be noaiaty that these improved economic conditions halhefit borrowers whose cash flow is not
currently sufficient to cover their debt servicetBat they are able to continue to make paymeras@ordance with their loan documents
without capital investment.
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Due to the recession, there was an increase irgagetdefaults and foreclosures in the broader coniaheeal estate market and these
defaults may continue. This increase was due intparredit market turmoil and declining propergsh flows and values. In addition, when
foreclosures on commercial real estate propemieg®ase, the property values typically decline duether as supply exceeds demand. We
experienced an increase in litigation (includingrbaers who have filed for bankruptcy reorganizaYiand foreclosure activity. In conjunction
with this increase in foreclosure activity, we Wikely continue to experience a high level of expes, including general and administrative,
provision for loan losses and impairment lossesthien, our ability to sell our real estate owneREQO”) and the prices we receive on sale are
affected by many factors, including but not limited the number of potential buyers, the numberonfipeting properties on the market and
other market conditions. Historically, as a resiithe challenging economic conditions, in genetad, holding periods (and related holding
costs) for our REO increased. The lagging impathefadverse economic conditions may continue te laa adverse effect on our REO and
the limited service hospitality industry which magsult in additional impairment losses and theatffa our results of operations and financial
condition may be material. We believe that curemdnomic conditions will allow a more efficient lggd) process during 2013; thus, we
anticipate that our holding periods and costs shdatrease. We foreclosed on the collateral unidertyree limited service hospitality
properties during July 2013 and sold two of thesperties during the third quarter of 2013.

Competition and Prepayment Activity

We believe that our borrowers typically prefer fixate loans. Historically, local banks offeredveefyear maturity, 20-year amortization
loan (“mini-perm” bank loan). During the recessitimgse types of loans were not causing significanipetition to us as they were not as
common as they had been historically. Recentlyptheket has changed such that local banks are affaiing this product which has
increased competition for loans.

In addition, we are experiencing increased conipatior SBA 7(a) Program loans from SBA 7(a) lerd&BA 7(a) Program loans
generally have variable rates of interest basea spread over the prime rate. Recently, our cotgpethave narrowed this spread. Therefore,
we have reduced, and may continue to reduce, tenefst rates to match our competitors’ quoted d@sterates for SBA 7(a) Program loans.
When interest rates are reduced by decreasingpthadwe charge our borrowers over the prime oatenet interest income and premium
income (to the extent recognized) will be negayivedfected which will decrease any income from auosihg operations and net income.

The weighted average interest rate on our fixedl@ns was 8.9% at September 30, 2013. Prepaymwieois fixed-rate loans have
generally been re-loaned or committed to be reddaat lower interest rates than the prepaid |0Afesare currently experiencing increased
prepayment activity on our commercial mortgagedixate loans primarily due to increased competition

As a result of the increased competition for loand the current economic environment, we have éperd an increase in prepayment
activity on both our variable and fixed-rate loave expect this level of prepayment activity to thaue in the near term. Historically, we
generated significant prepayment fees upon loapayraents. We have not generally generated signifijgeepayment fees since (1) we do not
retain prepayment fees on SBA 7(a) loans, (2) pmaeat provisions have expired on many of our fixatk loans, and (3) our variable-rate
loans have minimal or no prepayment fees.

Returns of Capital

During 2013, due primarily to payment of severaexpgenses and realized losses on our foreclosupegi®s, we anticipate a taxable
loss and all or a portion of our dividends will ti@emed returns of capital. See “REIT Taxable Incflness).”

Secondary Market Loan Sales

We continue to focus on the origination of SBA #adgram loans which require less capital due éaattility to sell the government
guaranteed portion of such loans. We utilize thé SBa) Program to originate small business loarimarily secured by real estate. The SBA
guaranteed portions of these loans are sold inl #zd@a transactions to either dealers in governrgeatanteed loans or institutional investors
(“Secondary Market Loan Sales”) as the loans dig funded.
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During the nine months ended September 30, 20130lde$18.4 million of the government guaranteedipo of SBA 7(a) loans for
cash premiums and 100 basis points (1%) (the mimirspread required to be retained pursuant to SBAlagons) as the servicing spread on
the sold portion of the loan. We did not sell thrweynment guaranteed portion of any SBA 7(a) Idansolely servicing spread or for future
servicing spread and cash premiums of 10% (“hyloddh sales” or “hybrid”) during the nine months eddseptember 30, 2013. For hybrid
loan sales and sales solely for servicing spreaidsgare not recognized at the time of sale dgeterally accepted accounting principles. The
cash premium collected on hybrid loan sales isatstamortized as a reduction to interest expensetbe life of the loan. Our deferred cash
premiums, included in secured borrowings, at Sepé&r0, 2013 total $2,822,000.

Our secondary market loan sale activity was asvl

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013

Cash . . 3
Premium Gain Recognized Upon S¢
Principal
Type of Sale Sold Receivec Book Tax
(In thousands
Cash premiun $18,39: $ 2,534 $ 1,96( $ 2,19¢
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012
Cash . . .
Premium Gain Recognized Upon Se
Principal
Type of Sal Sold Receivec Book Tax
(In thousands
Cash premiun $11,96¢ $ 1,56¢€ $ 1,18 $ 1,361
Hybrid 8,49¢ 85( — 994

$20,46" $2,41¢ $ 1,18i $ 2,361

The cash premiums received or spread achieved aon8ary Market Loan Sales are dependent upon aewafitfactors including the
interest rate we charge on the loan and the maeteé of the government guaranteed portion of tha@ las determined by third-party investors

LOAN PORTFOLIO INFORMATION
Loan Activity

During the nine months ended September 30, 201f8imded $34.9 million of loans. At September 30,2@ecember 31, 2012 and
September 30, 2012, our outstanding commitmerfisni loans were $28.6 million, $19.5 million and)$ll million, respectively. We expect
fund loans of between $55 million and $60 milliairidg 2013.

In addition to our retained portfolio of $232.7 lioih at September 30, 2013, we service $83.5 milibaggregate principal balance of
certain loans sold pursuant to Secondary Markehl®sles that have been accounted for as sale® Bcetain a residual interest in the cash
flows from these loans, the performance of theaadampacts our profitability and our cash ava#dbr dividend distributions. Therefore, we
provide information on both our loans retained (fRetained Portfolio”) and combined with sold loghat we service (the “Aggregate
Portfolio”).
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Information on our Aggregate Portfolio, includingepayments, was as follows:

September 3 December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands
Aggregate Portfolio (1 $ 316,17! $313,54: $297,45: $284,45: $273,68°  $275,53(
Loans funded (2 $ 34,89¢ $ 54,16 $ 38,35: $ 38,44( $ 30,43t $ 34,58
Prepayments (2 $ 16,71f $ 20,18: $ 10,35: $ 10,83( $ 12,79t  $ 68,55¢
% Prepayments (< 7.1% 6.8% 3.€% 4.C% 4.€% 21.(%

(1) Serviced portfolio outstanding at the period enlletbre loan loss reserves and deferred commitneest

(2) During the years ended December 31 and the nindhm@nded September 30, 20

(3) Represents prepayments as a percentage of the gaggrBortfolio outstanding as of the beginninghe applicable year. For the nir
months ended September 30, 2013, represents apadigiepayments as a percentage of our Aggregatéohm outstanding

The following table summarizes our loan activity fiee nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

Nine Months Ended
September 3(
2013 2012
(In thousands

Loans receivable, n- beginning of yea $238,99: $234,42°
Loans originated (1 35,87: 41,321
Principal reductions (1 (39,809 (31,54
Reclassifications to RE (2,125 (1,48))
Reclassification from secured borrowings to loateivable (1,749 —

Other adjustments (. (1,129 (80€)
Loans receivable, n- end of perioc $230,05: $241,91:

(1) See detailed information belo
(2) Represents the net change in loan loss resen&xuiits and deferred commitment f
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Detailed information on our loans funded and ppatreductions were as follows:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

September 3( September 3(
2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands
Loans Originated
Loans Fundec
SBA 7(a) loan: $ 6,291 $ 9,547 $21,33¢ $27,63:
Commercial mortgage loal 4,27 4,34( 13,56: 12,86
Total loans funde: 10,57« 13,881 34,89¢ 40,49¢
Other Loan Transaction
Loans originated to facilitate sales of real estataed 97¢ 82¢ 97¢ 82¢
Total loans originate $11,54¢  $14,71.  $35,87:  $41,32:
Principal Reductions
Scheduled principal paymer $ 325 $289: $10,03¢ ¢ 8,88¢
Prepayment 5,174 5,46¢ 11,37¢ 10,69(
Proceeds from sale of SBA 7(a) guaranteed i 4,722 7,78¢ 18,39: 11,96¢
Total principal reduction $13,14¢  $16,15(  $39,80¢  $31,54:
Retained Portfolio
Our Retained Portfolio was comprised of the follogyi
September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Weightec Weightec
Retained Portfolic Retained Portfolic
Average Average
Interest Interest
Amount % Rate Amount % Rate
(Dollars in thousands
Variable-rate- LIBOR $126,30¢ 54.% 4.8% $126,30¢ 52.% 4.€%
Variable-rate- prime 67,93: 29.5% 5.€% 70,85¢ 29.€% 5.8%
Fixec-rate 35,81( 15.6% 8.5% 41,82« 17.5% 9.C%
$230,05:  100.(% 5.86% $238,99: 100.(% 5.8%

As the majority of our loans have variable interasés, during the current low interest rate emuinent, our interest income has been
negatively impacted. To the extent LIBOR or them@irate changes, we will have changes in intenesinie from our variable-rate loans.

Portfolio Quality

Our provision for loan losses (excluding reductiohfan losses and recoveries) as a percentager afeighted average outstanding
Loans Receivable Subject to Credit Risk was 0.4A#G60% during the nine months ended Septembe&2((@® and 2012, respectively. To
the extent one or several of our borrowers expeéeignificant operating difficulties and we arected to liquidate the collateral underlying
loans, future losses may be substantial.

Management closely monitors our loans which regenmauation for loan loss reserves based on spewiteria which classify the loans
into three categories: Doubtful, Substandard afeOAssets Especially Mentioned (“*OAEM”) (togetli8pecific Identification Loans”).
Loans classified as Doubtful are generally loangtvlare not complying with their contractual terrie collection of the balance of the
principal is considered impaired and liquidatiorttué collateral

26



Table of Contents

securing the loan is probable. These loans aredjlpiplaced on noccrual status and are generally in the forecloguweess. Loans classifi
as Substandard are generally those loans thaithee ot complying or had previously not compligith their contractual terms and have o
credit weaknesses which may make payment defapltiocipal exposure likely but not yet certain. bsaclassified as OAEM are generally
loans for which the credit quality of the borrowes temporarily deteriorated. Typically the boressvare current on their payments; howeve
they may be delinquent on their property taxesyrausce, or franchise fees or may be under agresmdrith provided for interest only
payments during a short period of time.

Management has classified our Loans ReceivableeSutyy Credit Risk as follows (balances represenirovestment in the loans prior to
loan loss reserves and deferred capitalized costs):

September 30, 201

Commercia
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Totals % Loans % Loans %

(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory $184,53« 93.5% $156,76( 92.%% $27,77: 96.€%
OAEM 4,20 2.1% 3,92( 2.2% 28t 1.C%
Substandar 7,32:% 3.7% 7,14(C 4.2% 182 0.€%
Doubtful 1,39( 0.7% 96¢ 0.€% 421 1.5%

$197,45. 100.(% $168,78¢ 100.(% $28,66! 100.(%

December 31, 201

Commercis
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Totals % Loans % Loans %

(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory $187,74¢ 92.(% $159,99: 90.% $27,75¢ 98.5%
OAEM 81 — — — 81 0.2%
Substandar 13,04: 6.4% 12,911 7.2% 12¢ 0.4%
Doubtful 3,34¢ 1.€6% 3,111 1.8% 234 0.8%

$204,21¢  100.96 $176,02¢ 100.% $28,19¢  100.(%

We begin foreclosure and liquidation proceedingemwve determine the pursuit of these remediesisiibst appropriate course of
action. Foreclosure and bankruptcy are complexsantetimes lengthy processes that are subject ter&leahd state laws and regulations. The
foreclosure processes on the underlying collatgrtiree limited service hospitality properties eeompleted during July 2013. We sold two
of these properties during the third quarter of201

Properties being foreclosed upon typically havedetated both physically (requiring certain repaind maintenance and discretionary
capital spending) and in their market (i.e., issuitk the properties’ vendors and reputation raqgirebuilding of its customer and vendor
base). To the extent properties are acquired thrémgclosure, we will incur holding costs inclugjrbut not limited to, taxes, legal fees and
insurance. In many cases, (1) cash flows have tashrced such that expenses exceed revenues dnan@)ise issues must be addressed (i.e
quality and brand standards and non-payment otfiae fees). Notwithstanding the foregoing, weeéhalithat in most cases it is prudent to
continue to have the business operate until thpgstp can be sold because of a property’s increasatietability as an operating entity
compared to non-operating (demonstrated histoyi¢atbugh our sales efforts and from informatioceiged from thirdparty brokers). We wi
hire third-party management companies to operatbperties until they are sold.

In situations where management believes that wiheakender, may suffer losses from diminishmentadfateral value due to actions or
inactions of the borrower, we may request thatwatcappoint a receiver to take control of the deltal to attempt to preserve current value.
Typically, a receiver is requested in situation®evehforeclosure of the underlying collateral is@pated but is expected to be a lengthy pro
or where the lender may not want to take titlehsas when there are questions concerning envirotaingsks. Prior to filing an application for
a receiver with a court, we
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evaluate whether the anticipated operating deficitee aggregate for the expected tenure of tbeivership are less than any anticipated
diminishment or impairment of the collateral valMé¢hile generally there is no court ordered mandaté¢he lender to fund any operating
shortfalls while the property is in receivership piractice, the lender does generally fund opegataficits.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared thé Three Months Ended September 30, 2012

Overview
Three Months Ended
September 3( Change
2013 2012 $ %
(In thousands

Total revenue: $4,58¢  $4,86¢  $(27€) (5.7%)
Total expense $3,83¢  $3,947  $(119) (2.9%)
Income from continuing operatiol $ 39¢ $ 64t $(247) (38.2%)
Net income $ 322 % 47:  $(150) (31.79%)

Revenues decreased during the three months engéeh@eer 30, 2013 primarily due to a decrease iogeized premium income from
the sale of the government guaranteed portion 08&A 7(a) loans while expenses decreased primduiéyto elimination of costs associated
with evaluation of strategic alternatives, panialffset by transaction costs incurred relatechtofotential merger during the three months
ended September 30, 2013.

More detailed comparative information on the conitpms of and changes in our revenues and expesgaevided below.

Revenues

Interest income during the three months ended 8d@e30, 2013 remained constant at $3,570,000 cadpa $3,561,000 during the
three months ended September 30, 2012. Our weighedige loans receivable decreased to $231.%mdliring the three months ended
September 30, 2013 compared to $241.7 million duttke three months ended September 30, 2012. Warhextrease of $57,000 during the
three months ended September 30, 2013 in the aratot of net loan origination fees and discoumisharily due to loan prepayments.

Premium income will not equal collected cash prensibecause premium income represents the diffetsztoeen the fair value
attributable to the sale of the government guashpmrtion of the loan and the principal balanaes{cof the loan adjusted by costs of
origination. During the last several years, magkemiums on Secondary Market Loan Sales have kdsstarically high levels due to reduc
longer term interest rates. Our premium incomeeksed to $417,000 during the three months endeeBber 30, 2013 compared to
$796,000 during the three months ended Septemh@03@. We sold $4.7 million of loans during thesthmonths ended September 30, 201
compared to $7.8 million of loans during the thneenths ended September 30, 2012 for solely cashipnes and the SBA required 1%
servicing spread. Also, average premiums decrefased13.4% during the three months ended Septe®®e2012 to 11.4% during the three
months ended September 30, 2013. We believe thah#rket premium reduction was due generally tartbease in longer term interest ra
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Other income consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended

September 3(
2013 2012

(In thousands
Prepayment fee $ 33¢ $ 254
Servicing income 16C 132
Income from Retained interests in transferred a: 42 43
Loan related incom- other 33 63
Other 27 15

$ 601 $ 507

We earn fees for servicing loans sold into the sdaoy market solely for cash premiums. As thess &e based on the principal balar
of the loans outstanding, they will increase aseroans are sold into the secondary market ancedserover time as scheduled principal
payments and prepayments occur.

Prepayment fee income is dependent upon a numifectofs and is not generally predictable as tHarme and mix of loans prepaying
not known. Recently, we have seen an increaseeipagment activity on our loans. See —“Executive Bany — Competition and Prepayment
Activity.”

I nterest Expense
Interest expense consisted of the following:

Three Months Ended

September 3(
2013 2012

(In thousands
Debentures payab $ 26¢ $ 181
Junior subordinated not 24¢€ 25¢
Secured borrowing 19¢ 302
Revolving credit facility 68 122
Other 22 23

$ 80: $ 887

The weighted average cost of our funds remainedtaahat 3.5% during both the three months endpte8tder 30, 2013 and 2012.

Interest expense on SBA debentures increased dhe tesuance of $4.0 million of debentures in Asif@012, $6.0 million in March
2013 and $8.5 million in August 2013. We repaid2$sillion of SBA debentures upon maturity on Septeml, 2013.

Secured borrowings increase as we sell SBA 7(asléar excess servicing spreads. Interest expamseirosecured borrowings will
decrease if we sell loans solely for cash and 8w $% required servicing spread or we experiengeicant prepayments and/or charge-offs.
The weighted average balance outstanding on ouresg®orrowings was $38.8 million during three nsnénded September 30, 2013
compared to $40.7 million during the three monthdesl September 30, 2012. Offsetting interest ex@penssecured borrowings is amortiza
of cash premiums from hybrid loan sales of $138&0@ $37,000 during the three months ended Septe30b2013 and 2012, respectively.

Interest expense on our revolving credit faciligcoeased primarily due to a decrease in the walghterage balance outstanding from
$19.6 million during the three months ended Septrb, 2012 to $6.6 million during the three morghgded September 30, 2013.
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Other Expenses

General and administrative expense increased $10 Hgring the three months ended September 30, @hared to the three months
ended September 30, 2012 due to an increase icooporate overhead due primarily to an increageafessional fees, including legal,
accounting and consulting fees.

Transaction costs of $1,222,000 during the threeth®ended September 30, 2013 primarily represgal Bnd due diligence costs
related to the potential merger. Costs associatddtihhe potential merger have been, and will cargito be, incurred and will be material. The
merger and other transactions are subject to oertetomary closing conditions, including the appiaf PMC Commercial’'s shareholders
and are contractually required to be completechter than December 31 2013. However, no assura@acelse given that we will be able to
complete the transactions by this date.

During 2011, we received certain inquiries expregsi preliminary interest in potential strategansactions. The Board established a
special committee of all independent trust manageevaluate these inquiries as well as other piatestrategic alternatives that could enhanc
shareholder value. During the third quarter of 2042 expensed $1,421,000 in costs associated wétliation of strategic alternatives
including legal fees, trust manager fees and diigedice costs when discussions were terminated ani¢hinterested strategic party. The spe
committee was dissolved during December 2012.

Our provision for loan losses, net was $148,00induhe three months ended September 30, 2013 aedhp@a provision of $53,000
during the three months ended September 30, 20%2inErease in provision for loan losses, net dytire three months ended September 30,
2013 is primarily due to the decrease in value lirhded service hospitality property. Our reservesre as follows:

September 3 December 3:
2013 2012
(In thousands
Specific identificatior $ 84C $ 1,63t
Genera 2,017 1,87¢
$ 2,85¢ $ 3,41

Due to the prolonged economic downturn and theeotitconomic environment, we believe that in gdneta borrowers’ equity in their
properties has been eroded and may further eroddhwiay result in an increase in foreclosure astighd credit losses. The lagging impact o
the adverse economic conditions may continue te laavadverse effect on the financial conditiomdfividual borrowers and the limited
service hospitality industry which may require #stablishment of significant additional loan lossarves and the effect on our results of
operations and financial condition may be material.

Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax

Three Months Ended

September 3(
2013 2012
(In thousands
Net operating losse $ (52) $ (146
Impairment losse (18) (7
Net losses on sale of real est (15) (29
Income tax benefi 9 —
Discontinued operations, net of t $ (79 $ (172

Our net operating losses relate to the operatindshalding costs of our REO included in disconttho@erations. As of September 30,
2013, we had sold all of our operating real estateed. We continue to have holding costs on ouraigimg real estate owned.
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During July 2013, we foreclosed on the underlyintiateral (limited service hospitality propertiexf)three loans with an estimated fair
value at foreclosure of $2.3 million. We sold oriehese properties in July for $1,175,000, receiwash proceeds of $200,000 and finance!
remainder. No gain or loss was recorded on thesa@tion. We sold another of these properties ine®eper 2013 for cash proceeds of
$965,000 and recorded a loss of $15,000.

Impairment losses represent declines in the estiofatr value of our REO subsequent to initial aion.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared togiNine Months Ended September 30, 2012

Overview
Nine Months Ended
September 3( Change
2013 2012 $ %
(In thousands

Total revenue: $13,58° $12,61f $ 97z 7.7%
Total expense $ 9,808  $11,75¢  $(1,959 (16.€%)
Income from continuing operatiol $ 283 $ b54¢€ $ 2,29( 419.%
Net income (loss $251: $ (97 $2,61 NM

Revenues increased during the nine months endadr8legr 30, 2013 primarily due to an increase ingazed premium income from
the sale of the government guaranteed portion oB&A 7(a) loans while expenses decreased primduéy/to elimination of costs associated
with evaluation of strategic alternatives, panialffset by transaction costs incurred relatechtofotential merger during the nine months
ended September 30, 2013.

More detailed comparative information on the conitpms of and changes in our revenues and expesgaevided below.

Revenues

Interest income increased slightly during the miranths ended September 30, 2013 to $10,496,000¢dtlvé nine months ended
September 30, 2013 from $10,392,000 during the miarths ended September 30, 2012. Our weightedgedoans receivable decreased to
$236.0 million during the nine months ended Septm30, 2013 compared to $237.9 million during treemmonths ended September 30,
2012.

Premium income will not equal collected cash prensilbecause premium income represents the diffetsztoeen the fair value
attributable to the sale of the government guashpmrtion of the loan and the principal balanaes{cof the loan adjusted by costs of
origination. During the last several years, magkemiums on Secondary Market Loan Sales have kdsstarically high levels due to reduc
longer term interest rates. Our premium incomedased to $1,960,000 during the nine months endeiéi®ber 30, 2013 compared to
$1,187,000 during the nine months ended Septenthe203 2. We sold more loans for solely cash premiand the SBA required 1% servic
spread during the nine months ended Septembel033, than the comparable period of 2012. In addjtittming 2013 average premiums for
Secondary Market Loan Sales increased from 13.1%aglthe nine months ended September 30, 2012.89%4 8uring the nine months ended
September 30, 2013. We believe that the marketiprameduction was due generally to the increaderiger term interest rates.
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Other income consisted of the following:

Nine Months Ended

September 3(
2013 2012

(In thousands
Servicing income $ 42€ $ 37C
Prepayment fee 38¢ 273
Income from Retained interests in transferred a: 12< 14¢
Loan related incom- other 11z 172
Other 80 72

$1,131 $1,03¢

We earn fees for servicing loans sold into the sdaoy market solely for cash premiums. As thess &e based on the principal balar
of the loans outstanding, they will increase aseroans are sold into the secondary market ancedserover time as scheduled principal
payments and prepayments occur.

Prepayment fee income is dependent upon a numifectofs and is not generally predictable as tHarme and mix of loans prepaying

not known. Recently, we have seen an increaseeipagment activity on our loans. See —“Executive Bany — Competition and Prepayment
Activity.”

I nterest Expense
Interest expense consisted of the following:

Nine Months Ended

September 3(
2013 2012

(In thousands
Junior subordinated not $ 73t $ 781
Secured borrowing 72¢ 887
Debentures payab 723 52€
Revolving credit facility 257 362
Other 67 90

$2,511 $2,64¢

The weighted average cost of our funds remainedtaahat 3.5% during both the nine months endete8dger 30, 2013 and 2012.

Secured borrowings increase as we sell SBA 7(asléar excess servicing spreads. Interest expamseirosecured borrowings will
decrease if we sell loans solely for cash and 8w $% required servicing spread or we experiengricant prepayments and/or charge-offs.
The weighted average balance outstanding on ouresg®dorrowings was $39.7 million during the ninentins ended September 30, 2013
compared to $38.0 million during the nine monthdeehSeptember 30, 2012. Offsetting interest expensecured borrowings is amortization
of cash premiums from hybrid loan sales of $277 &0® $107,000 during the nine months ended SepteBdh@013 and 2012, respectively.

Interest expense on SBA debentures has increaset dine issuance of $4.0 million of debenture&ugust 2012, $6.0 million in March
2013 and $8.5 million in August 2013. We repaicd2$aillion of SBA debentures upon maturity on Septeml, 2013.

Interest expense on our revolving credit faciligcoeased primarily due to a decrease in the walghterage outstanding from $17.9
million during the nine months ended Septembe28@2 to $10.0 million during the nine months enBegtember 30, 2013.
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Other Expenses

General and administrative expense increased $d62{0ring the nine months ended September 30, @0tpared to the nine months
ended September 30, 2012. General and adminigraxpenses are comprised of (1) corporate oveilheadling legal and professional fees,
sales and marketing expenses, public company audatery costs and (2) expenses related to asseently in the process of foreclosure. ¢
corporate overhead increased to $1,767,000 dunmgine months ended September 30, 2013 compafid4d5,000 during the nine months
ended September 30, 2012 primarily due to increasaxstment advisory and professional fees. Experalated to assets currently in the
process of foreclosure increased to $178,000 duhi@gine months ended September 30, 2013 compafikB,000 during the nine months
ended September 30, 2012. These expenses incumiad the foreclosure process for problem loansparaearily related to property taxes
incurred, protection of the asset and operatingitiefunded to receivers.

Transaction costs of $1,615,000 during the ninethmoanded September 30, 2013 primarily represgat knd due diligence costs rele
to the potential merger. Costs associated wittptitential merger have been, and will continue tameurred and will be material. The merger
and other transactions are subject to certain mastp closing conditions, including the approvaP®iC Commercial's shareholders and are
contractually required to be completed no latentbacember 31, 2013. However, no assurances cgivdére that we will be able to complete
the transactions by this date.

During 2011, we received certain inquiries expregsi preliminary interest in potential strategansactions. The Board established a
special committee of all independent trust manageevaluate these inquiries as well as other piaiestrategic alternatives that could enhanc
shareholder value. During the nine months endedeSder 30, 2012, we expensed $3,623,000 in costeiased with evaluation of strategic
alternatives including legal fees, trust manages fand due diligence costs when discussions wenénizted with one interested party. The
special committee was dissolved during Decembe? 201

Our provision for loan losses, net was $562,000hduthe nine months ended September 30, 2013 caupar$646,000 during the nine
months ended September 30, 2012. Our provisioloéar losses primarily relates to limited servicapitality properties included in troubled
debt restructurings. Our reserves were as follows:

September 3 December 3.
2013 2012
(In thousands
Specific identificatior $ 84C $ 1,53t
Genera 2,012 1,87¢
$ 2852 $ 3,41

Due to the prolonged economic downturn and theeotireconomic environment, we believe that in gdnetat borrowers’ equity in their
properties has been eroded and may further erod#hwiay result in an increase in foreclosure astignd credit losses. The lagging impact o
the adverse economic conditions may continue te lasmvadverse effect on the financial conditiomdividual borrowers and the limited
service hospitality industry which may require #stablishment of significant additional loan lossarves and the effect on our results of
operations and financial condition may be material.

Income tax provision (included in continuing opéras) and income tax benefit (included in discomid operations) was $927,000
during the nine months ended September 30, 201pa@d to $311,000 during the nine months endece8eyer 30, 2012 related to our
taxable REIT subsidiaries. Our taxable REIT sulssids had taxable income of $2,077,000 during the months ended September 30, 2013
compared to $1,321,000 during the nine months eBaépdember 30, 2012. The increase primarily rel@é@screased interest income, the
timing difference during the nine months ended &ejier 30, 2012 from loan sold by our SBA 7(a) slibsy as hybrids which had the effect
of increasing our deferred tax expense and a rixgtuict overhead of the subsidiary.
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Discontinued Operations, Net of Tax

Nine Months Ended

September 3(
2013 2012
(In thousands
Net operating losse $(190) $(416)
Impairment losse (135) (20¢)
Net losses on sale of real est (16) (29
Income tax benefi 18 —
Discontinued operations, net of t $(329) $(6439)

Our net operating losses relate to the operatindshalding costs of our REO included in disconttho@erations. As of September 30,
2013, we had sold all of our operating real estateed. We continue to have holding costs on ouraisimg real estate owned.

During the second quarter of 2013, we sold the gnigs comprising our real estate owned for cashg®ds with a minimal net loss.
During July 2013, we foreclosed on the underlyintiaderal (limited service hospitality propertiex)three loans with an estimated fair value a
foreclosure of $2.3 million. We sold one of thesepgrties in July for $1,175,000, received castteeds of $200,000 and financed the
remainder. No gain or loss was recorded on thesa@ion. We sold another of these properties duBiegtember for cash proceeds of $965
and recorded a loss of $15,000.

Impairment losses represent declines in the estiolfair value of our REO subsequent to initial ailon. Impairment losses during the
nine months ended September 30, 2013 primarilyerd¢taa full service hospitality property acquishtting 2010 which experienced decline:
its value. Impairment losses during the nine moetitded September 30, 2012 primarily relate toalrestablishment acquired during 2009
which experienced declines in its value. Both efsthproperties were sold during the third quaft@0a3.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Flow Analysis
Information on our cash flow was as follows:

Nine Months Ended

September 3(
2013 2012 Change
(In thousands
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 3,117 $(3,379) $ 6,491
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 3,20¢ 2,28¢ 91€
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 5,04z (1,220 6,262
Net cash flow $11,35¢ $(2,310) $13,66¢

Operating Activities

As a REIT, our earnings are typically used to fond dividends. Since operating cash flows alsauidellending activities, it is necessary
to adjust our cash flow from operating activities éur lending activities to determine coveragewf dividends from operations. Therefore,
adjust net cash flow from operating activities kdddified Cash.” Management believes that our mediftash available for dividend
distributions (“Modified Cash”) is a more appropeandicator of operating cash coverage of ourddimd payments than cash flow from
operating activities. Modified Cash is calculatgdadljusting our cash flow from operating activiti®s(1) the change in operating assets and
liabilities and (2) loans funded, held for salet ofeproceeds from sale of guaranteed loans amttipal collected on loans (“Operating Loan
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Activity”). Modified Cash, a non-GAAP financial mearement, is one of the factors used by our Baait$ idetermination of dividends and
their timing. In respect to our dividend policy, Welieve that the disclosure of Modified Cash aaldiditional transparency to our dividend
calculation and intentions. However, Modified Casay differ significantly from dividends paid duettee Board’s dividend policy regarding
returns of capital, timing differences between bowome (loss) and taxable income (loss) and tinofhngayment of dividends to eliminate or
reduce Federal income taxes or excise taxes &HEHhE level.

The following reconciles net cash provided by (usgddperating activities to Modified Cash:

Nine Months Ended

September 3(
2013 2012
(In thousands
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 3,112 $(3,379)
Change in operating assets and liabili 4,01z (3,329
Operating Loan Activity (3,399 8,25¢
Modified Cast $ 3,732 $ 1,54¢

To the extent Modified Cash does not cover theerurdividend distribution rate or if additional bas needed based on our working
capital needs, the Board may choose to modifyuteent dividend policy. See —“Dividend€Juring the nine months ended September 30,
and 2012, dividend distributions were greater thiaified Cash by $188,000 and $3,510,000, respelgtiModified Cash, after adjusting for
payment of transaction and evaluation of stratatiernatives expenses was $4,846,000 and $5,17fg0@@ nine months ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, whichgmater than dividend distributions by $926,000 $113,000 during the nine months
ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectivehe Hfeed working capital to fund any shortfall peecating cash flows to cover our divide
distributions, we would need to borrow the fundsvrour revolving credit facility or use availablenfls from the repayment of principal on
loans receivable.

Our net cash provided by (used in) operating aaiwill fluctuate based on the sale of the gomant guaranteed portion of our SBA 7
(a) loans for solely cash premiums (which allowsdale treatment per generally accepted accouptingiples) compared to selling these
government guaranteed portions as hybrids whidbatsf proceeds as secured borrowings in finandtigites.

Investing Activities

Our primary investing activity is the originatiofiloans and collections on our investment portfodoring the nine months ended
September 30, 2012, the primary use of funds wassléunded, net of principal collected on loan$&83,000. During the nine months ended
September 30, 2013, our source of funds from imvgstctivities was principal collected on loans, aloans funded of $1,519,000 due to
increased prepayment activity on our loans. Inaudghin principal collected on loans are prepayteeaf $11,378,000 and $10,690,000
during the nine months ended September 30, 2012@12], respectively. Prepayments are dependentaipoamber of factors are not
generally predictable. Recently, we have seen ene@se in prepayment activity related to our conciaémortgage fixedate loans. We expe
that principal collections on our loans will contento be our primary source of funds from investwgvities. We also sold real estate owned
during the nine months ended September 30, 2018aletted cash proceeds of $1,622,000. In addidaring the nine months ended
September 30, 2012, restricted cash and cash depisaf $2,233,000 were released in connectioh thi¢ exercise of the “clean-up call”
option on our 2003 Joint Venture structured notes.

Based on our outstanding loan portfolio at SepterBBe2013, our estimated collection of scheduleagpal payments and known
prepayments during the next twelve months was apedely $13.1 million. Of this, approximately $20million could be available to repay a
portion of the balance outstanding under the remgleredit facility. The remaining $2.9 million wialibe used to repay secured borrowings
and for obligations of our SBICs.
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Financing Activities

We used funds from financing activities during ttiee months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 nisirtmapay dividends of
$3,920,000 and $5,058,000, respectively. We hadepetyments on our revolving credit facility of 820,000 during the nine months ended
September 30, 2012. Each of our SBIC subsidiasgseid $3.0 million in SBIC debentures during M&6t3. In addition, our SBIC
subsidiaries issued a total of $8.5 million in SBI€bentures during August 2013. We repaid $4.danilbf SBIC debentures upon maturity on
September 1, 2013. Proceeds from Secondary Madaat Bales recorded as secured borrowings duringinieemonths ended September 30,
2012 were $8,498,000. We did not sell the goverrirgearanteed portion of any SBA 7(a) loans as loghduring the nine months ended
September 30, 2013. To the extent we sell the gowvent guaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) loans as dgbproceeds from Secondary Market
Loan Sales included in financing activities wilthease.

Sources and Uses of Funds
Liquidity Summary

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtahcash requirements, including ongoing committeea repay borrowings, fund loans
and other investments, pay dividends, fund debiceand for other general corporate purposesyidiet potential merger transaction costs.
Our primary sources of funds to meet our liquidigeds, including working capital, dividends, debtvge and additional investments, if any,
consist of (1) Secondary Market Loan Sales, (2¢@eds from principal and interest payments, indggirepayments and (3) borrowings ur
our $40 million unsecured revolving credit facil{the “Revolver”). We believe these sources of sindl be sufficient to meet our liquidity
requirements.

As a REIT, we must distribute to our shareholdéteast 90% of our REIT taxable income to maintaim tax status under the Code.
Accordingly, to the extent the sources above regeaxable income, such amounts have historitagn distributed to our shareholders. In
general, should we receive less cash from ourg@artbf investments, we can lower the dividend samat to cause any material cash shortfall.
During 2013, our Modified Cash will be utilizedfiand a portion of our expected 2013 dividend disttions and will not be available to fund
portfolio growth or for the repayment of principghle on our debt.

Sources of Funds

In general, we need liquidity to originate new Isamd repay principal and interest on our debt.@parating revenues are typically
utilized to pay our operating expenses, interedtdividends. We have historically utilized prindigallections on loans receivable, proceeds
from Secondary Market Loan Sales, issuance of Sl6&ntures and borrowings under our Revolver apmmary sources of funds.

The relatively limited amount of capital availalbbeoriginate new commercial loans has caused usstoict non-SBA 7(a) Program and
non-SBIC loan origination activity. A reductiontine availability of the above sources of funds ddudve a material adverse impact on our
financial condition and results of operationshiése sources are not available in the future, welmage to originate loans at reduced levels or
sell assets, potentially on unfavorable terms.

Our unsecured $40 million Revolver, with availdyilbf $28.1 million at September 30, 2013, origipahatured on June 30, 2014.
During August 2013, we extended the facility fasreeyear period and the facility now matures June 8052 The interest rate is the prime
less 50 basis points or the 30-day LIBOR plus 206pa option. Certain covenants, among other thitigst our ability to incur indebtedness,
grant liens, make investments and sell assetsm@st significant covenant is a minimum beneficisiraguity covenant of $132.0 million at
January 1, 2013. In addition, the loss of eitheswfnamed executive officers would cause an evkdéfault on our Revolver. At
September 30, 2013, we were in compliance witlctheenants of this facility. While we anticipate mtaining compliance with these
covenants, there can be no assurance that weendble to do so.

If we are unable to make required payments undeboowing arrangements, breach any representatisrarranty of our borrowing
arrangements or violate any covenant, our lendessancelerate the maturity of our debt or forcéousike other actions. In connection with
event of default under our Revolver, the lendgresmitted to accelerate repayment of all amounésahd terminate its commitment to lend
thereunder. Any such event may have a materialradwaffect on our liquidity, the value of our commehares and the ability to pay dividends
to our shareholders. In the event of a
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default on our Revolver, we will rely on Modifieca€h, available principal payments (including prepesgts), and (if necessary) proceeds fron
asset and loan sales to satisfy our liquidity resjuents. To the extent we need additional cajtfiate can be no assurance that we would be
able to increase the amount available under thelRewvor identify other sources of funds at an atakle cost, if at all.

At September 30, 2013, we had commitments fronSBA for the issuance of $1.5 million in SBIC dehess. To the extent we have
commitments to fund new SBIC loans in excess db $illion, we may request additional debenture cammants. Approval of SBIC
debenture commitments can be a time consumingeangifly process.

We rely on Secondary Market Loan Sales to creadability and/or repay principal due on our RewalvOnce fully funded, we typica
sell the government guaranteed portion of our SBA [bans. The market demand for Secondary MarkanlSales may decline or be
temporarily suspended. To the extent we are unatdgecute Secondary Market Loan Sales in the naoase of business, our financial
condition and results of operations could be aalgraffected.

Uses of Funds

In general, the primary use of our funds is to iodte loans and for repayment of principal andrggeon our debt. Our outstanding
commitments to fund new loans were $28.6 millio®eptember 30, 2013, of which $18.5 million wenedome-rate based loans to be
originated under the SBA 7(a) Program, the goventrgaaranteed portion of which is intended to Hd parsuant to Secondary Market Loan
Sales. Our net working capital outlay would be $#ibion related to these SBA 7(a) loans (excludamy premium received upon sale);
however, the guaranteed portion of our SBA 7(ajiso@annot be sold until they are fully funded. Cdtmrants have fixed expiration dates.
Since some commitments expire without the propésaual closing, total committed amounts do not neardlgsepresent future cash
requirements. During 2013, we anticipate that wiefumd loans of between $55 million to $60 million

There may be several months between when thelib@lance of an SBA 7(a) Program loan is fundediaisdfully funded and can be
sold. In these instances, our liquidity would bieeted in the short-term.

We have a liability for borrower advances of $3.ian at September 30, 2013. In general, as phttt@ monitoring process to verify
that the borrowers’ cash equity is utilized forifttended purpose, we receive deposits from ouola@rs and release funds upon presentation
of appropriate documentation. When distributioresraquested and approved, these borrower advagmesent a use of funds which we
expect to be paid with cash on hand and/or our Rexo

We are currently incurring transaction costs asgediwith the potential merger, including legal doe diligence costs. These costs will
continue to be incurred and will be material. Teani®n costs will be funded using cash on handaralir Revolver.

We may pay dividends in excess of our Modified Casimaintain our REIT status or as approved byBnard. During the nine months
ended September 30, 2013, the source of fundsufodividend distributions of $3.9 million was Moudifl Cash of $3.7 million and principal
collections on our loans receivable of $0.2 million

SEASONALITY

Generally, we are not subject to seasonal trendsieder, since we primarily lend to the limited seevhospitality industry, loan
delinquencies and requests for deferments typiciltyin the winter months due primarily to redans in business travel and consumer
vacations.

DIVIDENDS

Our shareholders are entitled to receive dividemiglsn and as declared by the Board. In determinivigehd policy, the Board considers
many factors including, but not limited to, actaad anticipated Modified Cash, expectations fourfeitearnings, REIT taxable income (loss)
and maintenance of REIT status, the economic enwiemt, our ability to obtain leverage, loan poitfgierformance and our ability to maint
a stable dividend considering the foregoing fact@mnsequently, the dividend rate on a quartergisbdoes not necessarily correlate directly t
any individual factor.
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Dividends declared during 2013 were as follows:

Amount
Record Date Date Paic Per Shar
March 28, 2013 April 8, 2013 $0.12¢
June 28, 201 July 8, 201z 0.12¢
September 30, 201 October 7, 201. 0.12¢
$0.37¢

During 2013, due primarily to payment of severaexpgenses and realized losses on our foreclosupegi®s, we anticipate a taxable
loss. Thus, all or a portion of our dividends vl deemed returns of capital.

Pursuant to the merger agreement, we are limitegiaoterly dividends of $0.125 per share untilrtterger is completed or the merger
agreement is otherwise terminated.

We have a covenant within our Revolver that require to maintain a minimum net worth of $132 milliwshich may limit our ability to
pay returns of capital as part of our dividenddsTovenant has not historically limited the amooindividends we have paid.

REIT TAXABLE INCOME (LOSS)
The following reconciles net income (loss) to REdXable income (loss):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 3( September 3(
2013 2012 2013 2012
(In thousands
Net income (loss $ 32: $ A47: $ 2,618 $ (97
Book/tax differences
Strategic alternative — 1,25 — 3,45¢
Loss on sale of real est: — — (1,537 —
Amortization and accretio (12 (12) (35) (279
Severance paymer 4 (8) (1,809 (23
Transaction cosl 1,22: — 1,61t —
Loan valuatior (739 48¢ (45¢) 39¢
Impairment losse — — 11€ 167
Other, ne 42 23 72 19¢
Subtotal 832 2,21¢ 482 3,921
Adjustment for TRS net income, net of 1 (639 (559 (1,642 (590
REIT taxable income (los: $ 19¢ $ 1,65¢ $(1,160 $ 3,331
Distributions declare $ 1,32¢ $ 1,69¢ $ 3,97« $ 5,08:
Basic weighted average common shares outstal 10,59¢ 10,59( 10,59 10,58

As a REIT, PMC Commercial generally will not be gdb to corporate level Federal income tax on netiine that is currently distribut
to shareholders provided the distribution excedl¥ 8f REIT taxable income.
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ITEM 3.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting frcmanges in various market metrics. We are subgentdrket risk including liquidity risk,
real estate risk and interest rate risk as desaiibelow. Although management believes that thetdative analysis on interest rate risk bel
is indicative of our sensitivity to interest ratleanges, it does not adjust for potential changexéulit quality, size and compaosition of our
balance sheet and other business developmentsdbbt affect our financial position and net incoftess). Accordingly, no assurances can be
given that actual results would not differ mategidfom the potential outcome simulated by thesienases.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the potential that we would bealrle to meet our obligations as they come due tsecalian inability to liquidate assets

or obtain funding. We are subject to changes irdett and collateralized mortgage markets. Thes&atsgare continuing to experience
disruptions, which could continue to have an adv@rgact on our results of operations and finareoaldition.

Current conditions in the debt markets include ceduiquidity and increased risk adjusted premiuht®se conditions have increasec
cost and reduced the availability of financing sest The market for trading and issuance in asseiedal securities continues to experience
disruptions resulting from reduced investor demfamdhese securities and increased investor yedgiirements. In light of these market
conditions, we expect to finance our loan portfatidghe short-term with our current capital and Revolver.

Real Estate Risk

The value of our commercial mortgage loans andability to sell such loans, if necessary, are inpaddy market conditions that affect
the properties that are the primary collateraldior loans. Property values and operating inconma fitte properties may be affected adversely
by a number of factors, including, but not limitied

. national, regional and local economic conditic
. significant rises in gasoline prices within a shmetiod of time if there is a concurrent decreaseusiness and leisure trav
. local real estate conditions (including an oversyip commercial real estate

. natural disasters including hurricanes and eartkegjeacts of war and/or terrorism and other evitratsmay cause performance
declines and/or losses to the owners and operatohe real estate securing our log

. changes or continued weakness in the underlyingevaf limited service hospitality propertie

. construction quality, construction cost, age arslgie

. demographic factor:

. amount and timing of required property improvemdaytdranchisors

. uninsured losse:

. environmental, zoning and other governmental lamgsragulations

. increases in operating expenses (such as enertp) tmsthe owners of the properties; ¢

. limitations in the availability and cost of lever

In the event property cash flows decrease, a baroway have difficulty repaying our loan, which twheesult in losses to us. In additic
decreases in property values reduce the valuesafditateral and the potential proceeds availableotrowers to repay our loans, which could

also cause us to suffer losses. Decreases in pyogdues could further reduce the estimated faiue of our REO which could cause us to
suffer losses.
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The following analysis of our provision for loarskes quantifies the negative impact to our operstimm increased losses on our
retained portfolio:

Nine Months Nine Months

Ended Year Ended Ended
September 3 December 3 September 3

Provision for loan losse 2013 2012 2012

(In thousands

As reported (1 $ 96( $ 2,50t $ 1,20¢
Annual loan losses increase by 50 basis point 1,72z 3,50¢ 1,95¢
Annual loan losses increase by 100 basis point 2,48¢ 4,51z 2,70¢

(1) Excludes reductions of loan losses and recove
(2) Represents provision for loan losses based on @#sa®in losses as a percentage of our weightechgedroans Receivable Subjec
Credit Risk, for the periods indicate

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many fa¢toduding governmental monetary and tax policégamestic and international economic
and political considerations and other factors.

Since our loans are predominantly variable-rate operating results will depend in large part oBOR and the prime rate. One of the
determinants of our operating results is differanoetween the income from our loans and our borrgwosts. Most of our debt is based on
LIBOR or the prime rate. The objective of this &gy is to minimize the impact of interest raterges on our net interest income.

VALUATION OF LOANS

Our loans are recorded at cost and adjusted bipaetorigination fees and discounts (which are gaaed as adjustments of yield over
the life of the loan) and loan loss reserves. teoto determine the estimated fair value of oanfy we use a present value technique for the
anticipated future cash flows using certain assionptincluding a discount rate based on a curresgbdnt rate, potential prepayment risks
loan losses. If we were required to sell our loans time we would not otherwise do so, there @andassurance that management’s estimat:
of fair values would be obtained and losses coaléthburred.

At September 30, 2013, our loans are 84% variadtkeat spreads over LIBOR or the prime rate. Irege@r decreases in LIBOR or the
prime rate will generally not have a material impawe the fair value of our variable-rate loans. kiéel $196.4 million of variable-rate loans at
September 30, 2013. The estimated fair value oatiablerate loans ($181.2 million at September 30, 204 8)ependent upon several fac
including changes in interest rates and the mddkdhe type of loans we have originated.

We had $36.2 million and $42.0 million of fixedte loans at September 30, 2013 and Decembef32, Bespectively. The estimated
value of these fixed-rate loans approximates ttwst and is dependent upon several factors induchianges in interest rates and the market
for the types of loans that we have originatedc8ichanges in market interest rates do not affiecinterest rates on our fixed-rate loans, any
changes in these rates do not have an immediatcirop our interest income. Our interest rate oislour fixed-rate loans is primarily related
to loan prepayments and maturities.

The average maturity of our loan portfolio is I&an its average contractual terms because of pmegrats. Assuming market liquidity,
the average life of mortgage loans tends to inergd®en the current mortgage rates are substantiglher than rates on existing mortgage
loans and, conversely, decrease when the curremgage rates are substantially lower than ratemxisting mortgage loans (due to refinanc
of fixed-rate loans).
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

At September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, w&1a@.4 million and $200.2 million of variable-rdtans, respectively, and $77.0
million and $80.0 million of variable-rate debtspectively. On the difference between our variabte-loans and our variabtate debt ($119
million and $120.2 million at September 30, 2018 &®cember 31, 2012, respectively) we have inteatstrisk. To the extent variable rates
decrease, our interest income net of interest esgoamuld decrease.

The sensitivity of our variable-rate loans and delithanges in interest rates is regularly monit@ed analyzed by measuring the
characteristics of our assets and liabilities. \&&eas interest rate risk in terms of the poteaffatt on interest income net of interest expen
an effort to ensure that we are insulated fromsiggificant adverse effects from changes in inter@gs. As a result of our predominately
variable-rate portfolio, our earnings have beenaedsusceptible to being reduced during periodsveér interest rates. Based on a sensitivity
analysis of interest income and interest expenSeptember 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, ifchsatidated balance sheet were to remai
constant and no actions were taken to alter thatiegiinterest rate sensitivity, each hypothet&abasis point reduction in interest rates woulc
reduce net income by $299,000 and $301,000, rasphlgton an annual basis. Since LIBOR has alrdzehn reduced to historically low leve
further significant negative impacts from lower IOR interest rates are not anticipated. In additena REIT, the use of hedging interest rate
risk is typically only provided on debt instrumenige to potential REIT compliance issues. Bend#itsved from hedging strategies not based
on debt instrumentsife., investments) may be deemed bad income for REITifgpadlon purposes. The use of a hedge strategy(wrdebt
instruments) would fix our cost of funds and hedgainst rising interest rates; however, to datdaes not employed any hedging strategies.

DEBT

Our debt was comprised of SBIC debentures, juniboslinated notes, the Revolver and secured bongsw government guaranteed
loans. At September 30, 2013 and December 31, Z2125 million and $17.2 million, respectively,air debt had fixed rates of interest
(SBIC debentures) and was therefore not affectechbyges in interest rates. Our variable-rate ddimsed on LIBOR or the prime rate and
thus subject to adverse changes in market intextest. Assuming there were no increases or dea@atiee balance outstanding under our
variable-rate debt at September 30, 2013, eachthgpoal 100 basis points increase in interessrateuld increase interest expense and
decrease net income by approximately $770,000.

The following presents the principal amounts byryefaexpected maturity, weighted average interatss and estimated fair values to
evaluate the expected cash flows and sensitivitytezest rate changes of our outstanding debéptetber 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012

Twelve Month Periods Ending September Carrying Fair
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafte Value Value (1)
(Dollars in thousands
Fixec-rate debt (2 $ — $400C $ — $ — $ — $23500( $ 27,500 $ 26,47¢
Variable-rate debt (LIBOR and prime based) (3) 1,21t 13,25: 1,29C 1,332 1,37% 58,64: 77,00t 75,11¢
Totals $1,21t $17,157 $1,29C $1,33Z $1,37¢ $82,14 $104,50! $101,59!

(1) The estimated fair value is based on a pregehite calculation based on prices of the samemilar instruments after considering risk,
current interest rates and remaining maturiti

(2) The weighted average interest rate of our f-rate debt at September 30, 2013 was 3.

(3) Principal payments on secured borrowings are depahdpon cash flows received from the underlyirgéo Our estimate of the
repayment is based upon scheduled principal paysranthe underlying loans. Our estimate will diffierm actual amounts to the extent
we experience prepayments and/or loan liquidatemd charg-offs.

(4) The weighted average interest rate of our vari-rate debt at September 30, 2013 was 3.
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Years Ending December 3 Carrying Fair
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafte Value Value (1)
(Dollars in thousands
Fixec-rate debt (2 $4,19C $ —  $4000 $ — $ — $ 9,000 $17,19( $18,02:
Variable-rate debt (LIBOR and prime rate based)
(3) (4) 1,93: 1317 1,31: 1,35¢ 1,397 60,81:  79,97¢  75,49¢
Totals $6,127 $13,17¢ $5,31Z $1,35¢ $1,397 $69,81! $97,16¢ $93,52¢

(1) The estimated fair value is based on a pregehite calculation based on prices of the samemilar instruments after considering risk,
current interest rates and remaining maturiti

(2) The weighted average interest rate of our f-rate debt at December 31, 2012 was 4..

(3) Principal payments on the secured borrowings angethelent upon cash flows received from the undeylgians. Our estimate of the
repayment is based upon scheduled principal paysranthe underlying loans. Our estimate will diffierm actual amounts to the extent
we experience prepayments and/or loan liquidatamd charg-offs.

(4) The weighted average interest rate of our vari-rate debt at December 31, 2012 was 3..
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ITEM 4.
Controls and Procedures
EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financiaffidér, management has evaluated
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls amt@dures (as defined under rules 13a-15(e) and.2aj-of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended) as of September 30, 2013. Baghdtoevaluation, the Chief Executive Officer &hief Financial Officer concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures were effecti

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN G

There have been no changes in our internal coowe financial reporting that occurred during theader ended September 30, 2013 the
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, our internal control overdimcial reporting.
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PART II
Other Information

ITEM 1. Legal Proceedings

REIT Redux, L.P. et al v. PMC Commercial TrustletOn October 9, 2013, a putative class action amivative lawsuit was filed
in the Dallas County Court at Law No. 5 in Dallagu@ty, Texas against and purportedly on behalf€RCommercial. The complaint names
as defendants PMC Commercial, members of the Baraddexecutive officers of PMC Commercial and CIMb&ir REIT. The plaintiffs assert
the action as a direct action, as well as a devieatction and allege, among other things, thaBihard breached the PMC Commercial
Declaration of Trust and conspired to deprive tlangiffs and the class of their right to vote fgpaove or decline the merger, to approve or
decline of the sale of PMC Commercial and to apprawvdecline the authorization of the PMC Commémanmon shares necessary to
support the conversion rights of the PMC Commemmiaferred shares to be issued pursuant to theemaggeement. The plaintiffs allege,
among other things, that the Board breached itgfady duties by approving and recommending thestations to the shareholders without
due regard for the fairness of the transactiofinfato maximize value for the shareholders, engagn bad faith and self-dealing by preferring
transactions that further enriched the trust marsagiethe expense of the shareholders, and comgparideprive the shareholders of their vo
power and prerogatives. The complaint alleges@tist Urban REIT aided, abetted and induced thosadires of fiduciary duty. The comple
further alleges that the causes of action wereaagded by gross negligence and intentional andcioal wrongdoing. The complaint seeks an
order enjoining a vote on the transactions contateglby the merger agreement, an order certifyingnatter as a class action for damages,
damages for lost shareholder value, exemplary damadtorney’s fees and costs, appointment ofeveg if justice so demands, in order to
preserve and maximize shareholder value, andladr @uch relief as the court may find reasonabieretessary to which plaintiffs may be
entitled. We have denied all of the allegationthim complaint and intend to vigorously defend asgfatinese allegations. However, no assuranc
can be given as to the outcome of this or any amfiilture lawsuits.

In the normal course of business we are periogigaltty to certain legal actions and proceedingsliing matters that are
generally incidental to our businesise(, collection of loans receivable). In management®miop, the resolution of these legal actions and
proceedings will not have a material adverse eff@cbur consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes to the fagdigrksed in Iltem 1A. Risk Factors in our AnnuapBe on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2012, other than the folim

Government Program and Regulatory Risks

A government shutdown could adversely affect our S8 7(a) loan originations, financial condition, resits of operations, and
share price.

The recent government shutdown which began Octbp2013 and ended October 17, 2013, affected dlityab originate SBA 7
(a) loans during this time as Congress failed foraye a budget which in turn eliminated availapibf funds for this loan program. We were
not able to get approvals for new SBA 7(a) loansnduthe shutdown and are dependent upon the Hegtararnment to maintain the SBA 7(a)
program. We could be materially and adversely &by circumstances or events limiting the avdlitgof funds for this loan program. In
addition, the budget as approved expires in Jarn2@ty. At such time, we could again experiencevegonent shutdown which would affect
our ability to originate government guaranteed $oand to sell the government guaranteed portiotisose loans in the secondary market. An
government shutdown could adversely affect our SB# loan originations, financial condition, resubf operations and share price.
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Operating Risks

The merger may not be completed, which could adveety affect our business, financial results and vakiof our common
shares.

Completion of the merger is subject to the satigfacof various conditions, including approval bétshare issuance by our
shareholders and the other conditions describéteimerger agreement. We cannot guarantee whémhase conditions will be satisfied or
that the merger will be successfully completedhinevent the merger is not completed, we may bgsuto several risks, including, but not
limited to, the following:

. Our manageme’s and employer attention from da-to-day business may be divertt

. We would still be required to pay significant trao8on costs related to the merger, including legetounting, financial
advisor, filing, printing and mailing expenses, amdier certain circumstances would be requiredatogptermination fee of
$4.0 million and reimburse CIM Urban REIT’s outjedcket transaction expenses up to $700,000 (exwudb42,000 of
expenses reimbursed by CIM Urban REI

. To the extent the costs we might incur cause b&tonable to comply with the covenants under omoRer, an event of
default could occur. The existence of an eventeddudt could restrict us from borrowing under thevBlver and from payir
dividends to our shareholders. The occurrence @vant of default would also permit our lender ¢oederate repayment of
all amounts due and to terminate its commitmeiend thereunde

If the merger is not completed, these risks couddemally affect our business, financial conditamresults of operations and the
market price of our common shares.

The merger is subject to the receipt of consents drapprovals from government entities and third paries that could delay
completion of the merger or impose conditions thatould have a material adverse effect on us or cauabandonment of the merger,
which may adversely affect the value of our commoshares.

Completion of the merger is conditioned upon thesemt of the SBA. A substantial delay in obtaintogsent from the SBA or the
imposition of unfavorable terms and conditions iy EBA could have an adverse effect on our busifiessicial condition or results of
operations, or may cause the abandonment of thgemer

Completion of the merger is also subject to apdrbyaertain third parties. A substantial delaybitaining such approvals, the
failure to obtain such approvals or the impositidninfavorable terms or conditions could have areesk effect on our business, financial
condition or results of operations, or may caugeaitandonment of the merger.

Uncertainties associated with the merger may haveregative impact on our business relationships.

The announcement of the merger may have a negatpect on our business relationships. Moreover,tdugperating covenants in
the merger agreement, we may be unable, duringghdency of the merger, to pursue certain strategmsactions and otherwise pursue
actions that are not in the ordinary course oftess even if such actions would prove beneficiagést events could have a material negative
impact on our results of operations and finanagadition.

In connection with the merger, one lawsuit has beefiled and is pending, and similar future lawsuitsmay be filed. An advers:
judgment in this or any similar lawsuit may preventthe merger from becoming effective within the expaed timeframe or at all. In
addition, this type of litigation is often expensie and diverts management’s attention and resourceghich could adversely affect the
operation of our business.

As noted in Item 1. “Legal Proceedings”, certaiarginolders of PMC Commercial have filed a lawsgaiast PMC Commercial,
members of the Board, PMC Commercial's executifieafs and CIM Urban REIT challenging the merger.

While we have denied all of the allegations in ¢benplaint and intend to vigorously defend agaihsse allegations, we cannot
assure you as to the outcome of this, or any sirhitare lawsuits, including the costs associatéti wefending these claims or any other
liabilities that may be incurred in connection wikte litigation or settlement of these claims hi plaintiffs are successful in obtaining an
injunction prohibiting the parties from completitige merger on the
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agreed-upon terms, such an injunction may preventompletion of the merger in the expected tinmé&aor may prevent it from being
completed altogether. Whether or not the plairitdfaims are successful, this type of litigatioroften expensive and diverts management'’s
attention and resources, which could adverselycaffee operation of our business.

ITEM 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds
None.

ITEM 3. Defaults upon Senior Securitie:
None.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.

ITEM 5. Other Information
None.
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ITEM 6. Exhibits
A. Exhibits

*

*%

Filed herewith

Furnished herewit

2.1

3.1

3.1(a)

3.1(b)

3.1(c)

3.2

3.3

*4.1
*4.2
10.1

10.2

10.3

*31.1
*31.2
**32.1
**32.2
101.INE
101.SCt
101.CAl
101.DEF
101.LAE
101.PRI

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July0&32by and among CIM
Urban REIT, LLC, CIM Merger Sub, LLC, PMC Commelclaust and

Southfork Merger Sub, LLC (incorporated by refereim Exhibit 2.1 to the
Registrar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on July 8, 201:

Declaration of Trust (incorporated by referencémexhibits to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-11 filed with $eeurities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) on June 25, 1993, as amendedi¢Ration No. 33-
65910)).

Amendment No. 1 to Declaration of Trust (incorpedaby reference to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-&d fivith the SEC on June 25,
1993, as amended (Registration Nc-65910)).

Amendment No. 2 to Declaration of Trust (incorpechaby reference to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theryeladed December 31,
1993).

Amendment No. 3 to Declaration of Trust (incorpedaby reference to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theryeaded December 31,
2003).

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to the exhilmtthie Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-11 filed with the SEC on JUnel293, as amended
(Registration No. 3-65910)).

Amendment No. 1 to Bylaws (incorporated by refeestacExhibit 3.1 to the
Registrar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on April 16, 2009

Debenture dated August 30, 2013 for $5,000,000 Vaitimthe SBA.
Debenture dated August 30, 2013 for $3,500,000 Waitimthe SBA.

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit &mgent dated August 5,
2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the period ended June 30, 20:

Amended and Restated Executive Employment ConivitictJan F. Salit dated
August 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhib.1 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Formr-K filed with the SEC on August 30, 201.

Amended and Restated Executive Employment ContvigictBarry N. Berlin
dated August 30, 2013 (incorporated by referendextabit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed witte SEC on August 30,
2013).

Section 302 Officer Certificatio— Chief Executive Office
Section 302 Officer Certificatio— Chief Financial Officel
Section 906 Officer Certificatio— Chief Executive Office
Section 906 Officer Certificatio— Chief Financial Officel
XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurt
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caussddiport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

PMC Commercial Trus

Date: 11/12/13 /s/ Jan F. Salit
Jan F. Sali
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: 11/12/13 /s/ Barry N. Berlin
Barry N. Berlin
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 4.1

|.D. Control #1300066!

License_# 04/04018:
DEBENTURE
$ 5,000,000.0@the “Original Principal Amount”)
09/01/2023the “Maturity Date”)
Western Financial Capital Corporati(the “Company”)
17950 Preston Road Suite 600 Dallas, TX. 2!
(Street (City) (State  (Zip)
PART |- PERIOD SPECIFIC TERMS
A. Applicable for the Scheduled Interim Period (andNew Interim Periods, as applicable)
Interest rate per annum for the Scheduled Intétesbd:_0.47%%.
Annual Charge applicable to the Scheduled Intergmdd: .76% per annum
Date of Issuance:-80-13
Scheduled Pooling Date:Z5-13
Scheduled Interim Perior  from and including the Date of Issuar
to but excluding the Scheduled Pooling C
Thefollowing italicized termswill apply if the Interim Period is extended by SBA:
New interest rate(s) per annt €) (b) (c)
% % %
New Annual Charge per annt (@ (b) (c)
% % %
New Pooling Date(s) (@ (b) (c)
New Interim Period(s): from and includin (a) (b) (c)
to but excluding €) (b) (c)

The Company, for value received, promises to pajPtdorgan Chase Bank N.A., as Custodian (the “Climtd) for the U.S. Small Business
Administration (“SBA”) and SBIC Funding Corporatidthe “Funding Corporation”), pursuant to the Cdstand Administration Agreement
(the “Custody Agreement”) dated as of April 27, 8@nong SBA, the Funding Corporation, the Fedemahé&l Loan Bank of Chicago, as
Interim Funding Provider (the “Interim Funding Pider”), and the Custodian, as amended,: (i) intesaghe Original Principal Amount listed
above at the applicable rate per annum listed glanak (i) an Annual Charge on the Original Primtidmount listed above at the applicable
rate per annum listed above, each at such locai@BA, as guarantor of this Debenture, may dandteach at the related rate per annum
identified for the Scheduled Interim Period (andreblew Interim Period, if any).
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This Debenture will bear interest for, and the Aainbharge will apply to, the Scheduled Interim Bérfand for each New Interim period, if
any) at the rate(s) and for the applicable perijoidicated above, to be paid in arrears by 1:00. New York City time) on the Business Day
prior to the Scheduled Pooling Date (and each NewliRy Date, if any) listed above. As used throughbis Debenture, “Business Day”
means any day other than: (i) a Saturday or Sur{d@ag; legal holiday in Washington, D.C.; and)(i& day on which banking institutions in
New York City are authorized or obligated by lawexecutive order to be closed. Interest on thisebélre and the Annual Charge for
Scheduled Interim Period (and each New Interimdeeif any) will each be computed on the basishefdactual number of days in the
applicable Interest Period divided by 360. The Canypmay not prepay this Debenture, in whole orart,mluring the Scheduled Interim
Period or any New Interim Period.

B. This Section B. is effective only after (i) the Saduled Interim Period and any New Interim Period(s)expire and (ii) the
Custodian receives this Debenture for pooling.

The Company, for value received, promises to papearder of JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., actingrastée (the “Trustee”) under that
certain Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dested February 1, 1997, as the same may be amémaedime to time, by and among t
Trustee, the SBA and SBIC Funding CorporationhasHolder hereof, interest semiannually on Marétahd Septemberst(the “Payment
Dates”) of each year, at such location as SBA uasantor of this Debenture, may direct a the ré&&14% per annum (the “Stated Interest
Rate”), and to pay a .76%er annum fee (the “Annual Charge”) to SBA on eBaliment Date, each calculated on the basis cdaofe365
day, for the actual number of days elapsed (inalydhne first day but excluding the last day), om @riginal Principal Amount from the last ¢
of the Interim Period until payment of such OridiRaincipal Amount has been made or duly providad The Company shall deposit all
payments with respect to this Debenture not ldtan tL2:00 noon (New York City time) on the applieaBayment Date or the next Business
Day if the Payment Date if not a Business Dayasltlirected by SBA.

The Company may elect to prepay this Debenturehiole and not in part, on any Payment Date, imth@ner and at the price as next
described. The prepayment price (the “Prepaymdo&Rmust be an amount equal to the Original RpacAmount, plus interest accrued and
unpaid thereon to the Payment Date selected f@agraent together with the accrued and unpaid An@hakge thereon to the Payment Date
selected for prepayment.

The amount of the Prepayment Price must be seé®Bfoor such agent as SBA may direct, by wire paymeimmediately available funds, r
less than three Business Days prior to the regrdgment Date. Until the Company is naotified othesnin writing by SBA, any Prepayment
Price must be paid to the account maintained byl'thetee, entitled by the SBA Prepayment Subaccaundimust include an identification of
the Company by name and SBA-assigned license nuyrthigeloan number appearing on the face of thisebele, and such other information
as SBA or its agent may specify.
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. —GENERAL TERMS

For value received, the Company promises to pdlye@rder of the Trustee the Original Principal Ambon the Maturity Date at such locat
as SBA, as guarantor of this Debenture, may direct.

This Debenture is issued by the Company and gusgdrity SBA, pursuant and subject to Section 3@BeoSmall Business Investment Act of
1958, as amended (the “Act’)§ U.S.C. Section 683). This Debenture is subjealltof the regulations promulgated under the Astamende
from time to time, provided, however, that 13 C.FSRctions 107.1810 and 107.1830 through 107.18%0 effect on the date of this
Debenture are incorporated in this Debenture fslyf set forth. If this Debenture is acceleratétn the Company promises to pay an amoun
equal to the Original Principal Amount of this Deh&e, plus interest and Annual Charge accrueduapdid thereon to but excluding the next
Payment Date following such acceleration.

This Debenture is deemed issued in the Distri@a@fimbia as of the day, month, and year first stateove. The terms and conditions of this
Debenture must be construed in accordance withitawdlidity and enforcement governed by, fedéaal.

The warranties, representations, or certificati@dento SBA on any SBA Form 1022 or any applicakidter of the Company for an SBA
commitment related to this Debenture, and any decusisubmitted in connection with the issuancéisfDebenture, are incorporated in this
Debenture as if fully set forth.

Should any provision of this Debenture or any &f documents incorporated by reference in this Dieioeibe declared illegal or unenforceable
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaingmgvisions will remain in full force and effect@this Debenture must be construed as if
provisions were not contained in this Debenture.

All notices to the Company which are required ogrha given under this Debenture shall be sufficierall respects if sent to the above-noted
address of the Company. For the purposes of tHieitare, the Company may change this address poly approval of SBA.
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COMPANY ORGANIZED AS CORPORATION

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thiguieioe to be signed by its duly authorized offaed its corporate seal to be
hereunto affixed and attested by its Secretaryssigtant Secretary as of the date of issuancalsibtave.

CORPORATE SEAL

Western Financial Capital Corporati
(Name of Licensee

By: /s/ Jan F. Sal

Jan F. Salit, Preside
(Typed Name and Title

ATTEST:

/s/Barry N. Berlin

XXXXXX Assistant

Secretary (Strike On¢
Barry N. Berlin
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Exhibit 4.2

|.D. Control #1300064.

License_# 04/0%624(
DEBENTURE
$ 3,500,000.0@the “Original Principal Amount”)
09/01/2023the “Maturity Date”)
PMC Investment Corporatidihe “Company”)
17950 Preston Road Suite 600 Dallas, TX. 2!
(Street (City) (State  (Zip)
PART |- PERIOD SPECIFIC TERMS
A. Applicable for the Scheduled Interim Period (andNew Interim Periods, as applicable)
Interest rate per annum for the Scheduled Intétesbd:_0.47%%.
Annual Charge applicable to the Scheduled Intergmdd: .76% per annum
Date of Issuance:-80-13
Scheduled Pooling Date:Z5-13
Scheduled Interim Perior  from and including the Date of Issuar
to but excluding the Scheduled Pooling C
Thefollowing italicized termswill apply if the Interim Period is extended by SBA:
New interest rate(s) per annt (@) (b) (c)
% % %
New Annual Charge per annt €)) (b) (c)
% % %
New Pooling Date(s) @ (b) (c)
New Interim Period(s): from and includin (a) (b) (c)
to but excluding (@) (b) (c)

The Company, for value received, promises to pajPtdorgan Chase Bank N.A., as Custodian (the “Climtd) for the U.S. Small Business
Administration (“SBA”) and SBIC Funding Corporatidthe “Funding Corporation”), pursuant to the Cdstand Administration Agreement
(the “Custody Agreement”) dated as of April 27, 8@nong SBA, the Funding Corporation, the Fedemahé&l Loan Bank of Chicago, as
Interim Funding Provider (the “Interim Funding Pider”), and the Custodian, as amended,: (i) intesaghe Original Principal Amount listed
above at the applicable rate per annum listed glanak (i) an Annual Charge on the Original Primtidmount listed above at the applicable
rate per annum listed above, each at such locai@BA, as guarantor of this Debenture, may dandteach at the related rate per annum
identified for the Scheduled Interim Period (andreblew Interim Period, if any).
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This Debenture will bear interest for, and the Aainbharge will apply to, the Scheduled Interim Bérfand for each New Interim period, if
any) at the rate(s) and for the applicable perijoidicated above, to be paid in arrears by 1:00. New York City time) on the Business Day
prior to the Scheduled Pooling Date (and each NewliRy Date, if any) listed above. As used throughbis Debenture, “Business Day”
means any day other than: (i) a Saturday or Sur{d@ag; legal holiday in Washington, D.C.; and)(i& day on which banking institutions in
New York City are authorized or obligated by lawexecutive order to be closed. Interest on thisebélre and the Annual Charge for
Scheduled Interim Period (and each New Interimdeeif any) will each be computed on the basishefdactual number of days in the
applicable Interest Period divided by 360. The Canypmay not prepay this Debenture, in whole orart,mluring the Scheduled Interim
Period or any New Interim Period.

B. This Section B. is effective only after (i) the Saduled Interim Period and any New Interim Period(s)expire and (ii) the
Custodian receives this Debenture for pooling.

The Company, for value received, promises to papeamrder of JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A., actingrastée (the “Trustee”) under that
certain Amended and Restated Trust Agreement deted February 1, 1997, as the same may be amémaedime to time, by and among t
Trustee, the SBA and SBIC Funding CorporationhasHolder hereof, interest semiannually on Marétathd Septemberst(the “Payment
Dates”) of each year, at such location as SBA uasantor of this Debenture, may direct a the ra®@14% per annum (the “Stated Interest
Rate”), and to pay a .76%er annum fee (the “Annual Charge”) to SBA on eBaliment Date, each calculated on the basis cdaofe365
day, for the actual number of days elapsed (inalydhne first day but excluding the last day), om @riginal Principal Amount from the last ¢
of the Interim Period until payment of such OridiRaincipal Amount has been made or duly providad The Company shall deposit all
payments with respect to this Debenture not ldétan 112:00 noon (New York City time) on the applieaBayment Date or the next Business
Day if the Payment Date if not a Business Dayasaltlirected by SBA.

The Company may elect to prepay this Debenturehiole and not in part, on any Payment Date, imth@ner and at the price as next
described. The prepayment price (the “Prepaymeaoe¢’Pmust be an amount equal to the Original RpalcAmount, plus interest accrued and
unpaid thereon to the Payment Date selected f@agraent together with the accrued and unpaid An@harge thereon to the Payment Date
selected for prepayment.

The amount of the Prepayment Price must be se®Bfoor such agent as SBA may direct, by wire paymeimmediately available funds, r
less than three Business Days prior to the redrdgment Date. Until the Company is notified othemin writing by SBA, any Prepayment
Price must be paid to the account maintained by'thstee, entitled by the SBA Prepayment Subaccanditmust include an identification of
the Company by name and SBA-assigned license nuyithigeloan number appearing on the face of thisebelye, and such other information
as SBA or its agent may specify.
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. —GENERAL TERMS

For value received, the Company promises to pdlye@rder of the Trustee the Original Principal Ambon the Maturity Date at such locat
as SBA, as guarantor of this Debenture, may direct.

This Debenture is issued by the Company and gusgdrity SBA, pursuant and subject to Section 3@BeoSmall Business Investment Act of
1958, as amended (the “Act’)§ U.S.C. Section 683). This Debenture is subjealltof the regulations promulgated under the Astamende
from time to time, provided, however, that 13 C.FSRctions 107.1810 and 107.1830 through 107.18%0 effect on the date of this
Debenture are incorporated in this Debenture fslyf set forth. If this Debenture is acceleratétn the Company promises to pay an amoun
equal to the Original Principal Amount of this Deh&e, plus interest and Annual Charge accrueduapdid thereon to but excluding the next
Payment Date following such acceleration.

This Debenture is deemed issued in the Distri@a@fimbia as of the day, month, and year first stateove. The terms and conditions of this
Debenture must be construed in accordance withitawdlidity and enforcement governed by, fedéaal.

The warranties, representations, or certificati@dento SBA on any SBA Form 1022 or any applicakidter of the Company for an SBA
commitment related to this Debenture, and any decusisubmitted in connection with the issuancéisfDebenture, are incorporated in this
Debenture as if fully set forth.

Should any provision of this Debenture or any &f documents incorporated by reference in this Dieioeibe declared illegal or unenforceable
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaingmgvisions will remain in full force and effect@this Debenture must be construed as if
provisions were not contained in this Debenture.

All notices to the Company which are required ogrha given under this Debenture shall be sufficierall respects if sent to the above-noted
address of the Company. For the purposes of tHieitare, the Company may change this address poly approval of SBA.
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COMPANY ORGANIZED AS CORPORATION

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused thiguieioe to be signed by its duly authorized offaed its corporate seal to be
hereunto affixed and attested by its Secretaryssigtant Secretary as of the date of issuancalsibtave.

CORPORATE SEAL

PMC Investment Corporatic
(Name of Licenset

By: /s/ Jan F. Sal

Jan F. Salit, Preside
(Typed Name and Title

ATTEST:

/sl Barry N. Berlir

XXXXXX Assistant

Secretary (Strike On¢
Barry N. Berlin
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Jan F. Salit, certify that:
I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of PMC Commercial Trus

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or en#ttate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistarnces under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this

report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is
being preparec

designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thHegeovered by thi
report based on such evaluation;

disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of anmealort) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, the registrant’s internal contrales financial reporting;
and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a)

b)

Date: 11/12/13

all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

any fraud, whether or not material, that inveslveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

/s/ Jan F. Salit
Jan F. Sali
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

[, Barry N. Berlin, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of PMC Commercial Trus

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or eéonditate a material fact necessar
to make the statements made, in light of the cistarnces under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to
the period covered by this repc

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this

report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

c)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrinégion relating to the registrant, including ithsolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others with@se entities, particularly during the period ihieh this report is
being preparec

designed such internal control over financiglorting, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thHegeovered by thi
report based on such evaluation;

disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth quarter in the case of an annual i¢ploat has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a)

b)

Date: 11/12/13

all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; anc

any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifrole in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

/s/ Barry N. Berlin
Barry N. Berlin
Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of PMC Coarnial Trust (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theripd ended September 30,
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Jas&lit, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135(dpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley#2002, that to the best of my
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeaitsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Jan F. Salit

Jan F. Sali

Chief Executive Office
November 12, 201




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of PMC Coarnial Trust (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for theripd ended September 30,
2013 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, BaxyBerlin, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135(dpted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley#2002, that to the best of my
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeaitsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Barry N. Berlin
Barry N. Berlin

Chief Financial Office
November 12, 201




